GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

AGENDA

Meeting Police and Crime Committee
Date Thursday 30 January 2014
Time 10.00 am

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen’s
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-
assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee

Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view
past meetings.

Members of the Committee

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair) John Biggs AM
Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair) Victoria Borwick AM
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair) Len Duvall AM
Tony Arbour AM Roger Evans AM

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business
listed below. This meeting will be open to the public. There is access for disabled people, and
induction loops are available.
Mark Roberts, Executive Director of Secretariat
Wednesday 22 January 2014
Further Information

If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities
please contact: John Johnson or Camelia Thomas; Telephone: 020 7983 4926,/4795;
E-mail: john.johnson@london.gov.uk/camelia.thomas@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458

For media enquiries please contact Mark Demery, Tel: 020 7983 5769,
Email: mark.demery@london.gov.uk

If you have any questions about individual reports please contact the report author whose details are
at the end of each report.

There is limited underground parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a
first-come first-served basis. Please contact Facilities Management (020 7983 4750) in advance if
you require a parking space or further information.



If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Si usted, o algiin conocido desea recibir una copia del order del dia, acta o informe en
Braille o en su propio idioma, y gratis, no dude en ponerse en contacto con nosotros
llamando al teléfano 020 7983 4100 o por correo electronico:
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Se vocé, ou algliem que conheca precisa uma copia da ordem do dia, anotacées ou
relatorios em prensa grande ou Braille, ou em outra lingu, entao por favour nos
telephone em 020 7983 4100 ou e-mail assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Haddii ama ama qof aad tagaanid, uu ugu baahan yahay koobiga ajendhada, haddaladii
ama warbixinta in far waaweyn loogu qoro ama farta qofka indoolaha akhrin karo, amaba
luugad kale, fadlan naga soo wac telefoonkan 020 7983 4100 ama email
assembly.translations @london.gov.uk.

Ta ba ri enikeni ti o ba ni ife ni eda ewe nla ti ighimo awon asoju tabi papa julo ni ede ti
abinibi won, ki o kansiwa lori ero ibanisoro. Nomba wa ni 020 7983 4100 tabi ki e kan si

wa lori ero assembly translations@london.gov.uk.

A ddA Al di el dL ddl A8 uldd serg (auyBl), Bz (24 i) s
Buied (steatel)-dl Ase Hiel »aiHl owddl 3 adanl »aa olo ad el wddl
e, dl gut s34+ 020 7983 4100 Guz s+t »iaal assembly . translations@london.gov.uk
Guz #mud S-Hda s,

(el 9 STPE AAhe (e A GrEwl, N0 91 M7t aFh 4 T¢ e 9 (g2
SRR ST CER SRR (TS Bl S0 Wi SR0E S0 020 7983 4100 & STH 10 (R Feped
4l assembly.translations@london.gov.uk £ i-m CETSTICETST ] |

7 3038 7 30 Tue fan 99 fouadt &, 863, Hifdar &t gt 7 folget & anft, 3 nrugt
ﬁﬁaﬂﬁwméwﬁawhﬁaﬁaﬁﬁ?@ﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁoﬁwmmﬂm?%amm
Q?ﬁ@ﬁﬁ'@?fﬁﬂu@ ¥ #IH® &9 : assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

i .~|JPLJ:’=JE;'JL_,E'-'L'JEidfsgd'iufdg_ﬁ{:;zuﬁ:{f;&L,-":“;ELEE"L;II'EFU'F:';}J)LJJLLFEA L__.- j
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk Z= Liy S 38 L EE 29,020 79834100 %7

ISO
9001

Quality
Management

Certificate Number: FS 80233



Agenda
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 30 January 2014

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements

To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair.

2 Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: John Johnson, john.johnson@london.gov.uk 020 7983 4926

The Committee is recommended to:

(@) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests
in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and

(c) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be
relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring
Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and any necessary action taken by the
Member(s) following such declaration(s).

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 56)

The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Police
and Crime Committee held on 19 December 2013 to be signed by the Chair as a
correct record.

The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 9 to 56 is attached for Members and officers only
but is available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee



Question and Answer Session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
the MPS (Pages 57 - 72)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Claire Hamilton, claire.hamilton@london.gov.uk 020 7983 5845

The Committee is recommended to:
(@) Note, as background to the question and answer session with the Deputy
Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Commissioner, the monthly

report from MOPAC as attached at Appendix 1 to the report;

(b) Note the answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the
Deputy Commissioner to the questions asked by Members.

Safeguarding (Pages 73 - 82)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Claire Hamilton, claire.hamilton@london.gov.uk 020 7983 5845

The Committee is recommended to:

(@) Agree to establish an investigation into Safeguarding, as set out in the
attached scoping report, and establish a Working Group to gather evidence on
behalf of the Committee, as set out in paragraph 4.3;

(b) Agree the Membership and a Chair of the Safeqguarding Working Group; and

(c) Agree to convene meetings of the Working Group on 13 February and 13

March 2014, in place of the scheduled Police and Crime Committee meetings
on those dates.

Work Programme for the Police and Crime Committee (Pages 83 - 84)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Claire Hamilton, claire.hamilton@london.gov.uk 020 7983 5845

The Committee is recommended to note its work programme as set out in paragraph
4.2 of the report.



Summary List of Actions (Pages 85 - 112)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: John Johnson, john.johnson@london.gov.uk 020 7983 4926

The Committee is recommended to note the ongoing, outstanding and completed
actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee and its Working Groups,
and correspondence entered into by the Chair in accordance with the Standing
Delegation to the Chairs, as listed in the report.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for 4 February 2014 at 10.00am in
Committee Room 3, City Hall.

Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Declarations of Interests

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 30 January 2014

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

Summary

This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary
interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and
gifts and hospitality to be made.

Recommendations

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted
as disclosable pecuniary interests’;

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific
items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding
withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant
(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the
time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and
noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any
necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted.

Issues for Consideration

Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf:

! The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly,
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered” must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London
Borough X.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk v11/2013

Page 1




3.2

Member

Interest

Tony Arbour AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

Committee of the Regions

Gareth Bacon AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Bexley

John Biggs AM

Andrew Boff AM

Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of
Europe)

Victoria Borwick AM

Member, Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea;
Deputy Mayor

James Cleverly AM

Chairman of LFEPA; Chairman of the London Local
Resilience Forum; substitute member, Local Government
Association Fire Services Management Committee

Tom Copley AM

Andrew Dismore AM

Len Duvall AM

Roger Evans AM

Member, LB Havering; Committee of the Regions; Trust for
London (Trustee)

Nicky Gavron AM

Darren Johnson AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Lewisham

Jenny Jones AM

Member, House of Lords

Stephen Knight AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond

Kit Malthouse AM

Deputy Mayor for Business and Enterprise; Deputy Chair,
London Enterprise Panel; Chair, Hydrogen London;
Chairman, London & Partners; Board Member, TheCityUK

Joanne McCartney AM

Steve O’Connell AM

Member, LB Croydon; MOPAC Non-Executive Adviser for
Neighbourhoods

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM

Murad Qureshi AM

Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of
Europe)

Dr Onkar Sahota AM

Navin Shah AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Harrow

Valerie Shawcross CBE AM

Member, LFEPA

Richard Tracey AM

Chairman of the London Waste and Recycling Board;
Mayor's Ambassador for River Transport

Fiona Twycross AM

Member, LFEPA

[Note: LB - London Borough; LFEPA - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority;
MOPAC - Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime]

Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism
Act 2011, provides that:

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered
or being considered or at

(i) ameeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or

(i)  any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s
functions

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and

Page 2



3.3

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting

UNLESS

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality —
Appendix 5 to the Code).

Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is
knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading.

In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that
was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising -
namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it
would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.

Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and
the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or
decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to
make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also
that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence.

Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person
from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the
previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to
disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend
at which that business is considered.

The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set
out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-
line database may be viewed here:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/qgifts-and-hospitality.

If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of
the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from
whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members
are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when
the interest becomes apparent.

It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or
hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so
regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in
any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA.

Legal Implications

The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report.

Page 3



5. Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: John Johnson / Camelia Thomas, Committee Officer
Telephone: 020 7983 4926 / 4795
E-mail: john.johnson@london.gov.uk / camelia.thomas@london.gov.uk

Page 4




Agenda Item 3
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

MINUTES

Meeting: Police and Crime Committee

Date: Thursday 19 December 2013

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the minutes may be found at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee

Present:

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair)

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair)

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair)
Tony Arbour AM

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

John Biggs AM

Victoria Borwick AM

Roger Evans AM

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1)

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Len Duvall AM.

2 Declarations of Interest (Iltem 2)
2.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
2.2 Resolved:

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 5



3.1

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 19 December 2013

Minutes (Item 3)
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Police and Crime Committee held on 21
November 2013 be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Question and Answer Session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime and the MPS (Item 4)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat, as background to
putting questions to the following guests:

» Stephen Greenhalgh, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime;

* Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe, Police Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Commission
(MPS); and

» (Craig Mackey, Deputy Commissioner, MPS.

A copy of the transcript is attached at Appendix 1.

During the discussion, the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime agreed to provide the
Committee with:

* Details of the headline results and proposed actions following DARA’s audit review of
the recording of crime statistics;

* A copy of the ‘commissioning strategy” that is assisting MOPAC and the MPS in its
commissioning process, including details of which police services can be outsourced;
and

* An update on the work being carried out by the Violence against Women and Girls
Panel to identify young women and girls who might be at risk of sexual exploitation.

The Commissioner and the Deputy Commissioner also agreed to provide the Committee with:

» Details of the resources dedicated to the recording and classification of crime
statistics;

» Confirmation of the number and percentage of on-the-spot fines to cyclists — issued
during the recent Met initiative ‘Operation Safeway’- that have since been cancelled;
and

¢ Details of the number of students arrested and the number of those who were

Page 6



4.5

5.1

52

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 19 December 2013

subsequently charged with offences during the recent student protests.

Resolved:
(@) That the monthly report from MOPAC be noted as background to the
question and answer session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime,

the Police Commissioner and the Deputy Police Commissioner; and

(b) That the commitments given to provide the Committee with further
information, as recorded above, be noted.

Work Programme for the Police and Crime Committee (Iltem 5)
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the work programme as set out in the report be noted.

Summary List of Actions (Iltem 6)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the ongoing, outstanding and completed actions arising from previous

meetings of the Committee and its Working Groups, as listed in the report, be
noted.

The Mayoral Strategy on Violence Against Women and Girls (2013-
2017) (Item 7)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

(a) That the publication of the Mayoral Strategy on Violence Against Women
and Girls (2013-2017) be noted; and

(b) That the summary table evaluating the impact of the Committee’s
recommendations on the final Strategy (attached as Appendix 1 to the

Page 7



Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 19 December 2013

report) be noted.

8 Date of Next Meeting (Item 8)

8.1 The next meeting of the Police and Crime Committee is scheduled for 16 January 2014 at
10.00am in the Chamber, City Hall.

9 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Iltem 9)

9.1 There was no other business the Chair considered urgent.

10 Close of Meeting

10.1  The meeting ended at 12.25pm.

Chair Date
Contact Officer: John Johnson or Camelia Thomas; Telephone: 020 7983 4926/4795; E-mail:

john.johnson@london.gov.uk/camelia.thomas@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020
7983 4458

Page 8



Appendix 1
Police and Crime Committee — 19 December 2013

Transcript of Item 5: Work Programme for the Police and Crime Committee

Joanne McCartney (Chair): | am going to start the questioning this morning. My first
question is to you, Commissioner, and it is on the issue of crime statistics, which | am sure you
are aware is a hot topic. | believe you were interviewed this morning about this very item. Do
you accept the claim that manipulating crime statistics is “an ingrained part of policing culture”?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
No, | am not sure | do entirely. | accept that there are always challenges to crime statistics, but,
just to repeat very clearly, we need accurate and truthful crime statistics. All of us do. The
public does because they need to know whether crime is going up or down. The victims do
because they need to know whether or not their crime is being recorded properly and dealt with.
| do because | am representing the police and from time to time | will want to say that things are
getting better and also sometimes explain why they are getting worse. We have to rely on the
stats to deploy our resources properly.

There are challenges which | am sure we may get into this morning about making sure they are
accurate, but overall we can generally be confident. However, we cannot be at all complacent.
The years have shown that the recording of crime stats can be wrong, as all organisations have
shown from health to education and others. We need to be constantly vigilant to make sure the
stats are correct.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): The Public Administration Select Committee and the Home
Affairs Select Committee have been looking at these over the last couple of months. | believe
you gave evidence to the Committee and relied on the fact that Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary (HMIC) had said that Metropolitan Police Service figures in terms of crime
recording were competent and reliable.

We had Sir Tom Winsor [Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Constabulary] telling the Committee
only a couple of days ago that he has written to you about this because - and | am quoting him
directly here - “HMIC in fact said that it was looking at 244 incidents logged by the
Metropolitan Police Service and 30 had been wrongly closed without a crime being raised”. He
went on to explain that, however, you are getting better at that. From those figures, it appears
that 12% of the cases that they dip-sampled were recorded as no crime when they should not
have been, which does obviously give grave cause for concern. What do you say to that
allegation?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):

Just to explain, obviously, the officers who gave evidence were giving evidence to the Public
Administration Select Committee and | appeared before the Home Affairs Select Committee a

Page 9



few weeks later. | was trying to explain, first of all, what we were doing about the claims these
officers had made because we are taking it seriously.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Good.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
First of all, we are carrying out an investigation into each of the allegations to see whether they
are accurate or not. We are not content with that. | know the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime is also asking the auditors to look at our figures, too. Finally, | have invited HMIC to
prioritise the Metropolitan Police Service in terms of their existing plan to look at crime records
throughout the country in this coming year. The plan was to go around in the spring through all
the forces and | have asked them to look at it earlier. It may be they have already started
having a look at our stats. We are having a serious inquiry into those allegations because it is a
serious matter.

The other point | was trying to make at the Home Affairs Select Committee was that the most
recent Her Majesty’s Inspector’s (HMI) report - and | will come back to who the author was -
was received and published in 2012 for an inspection that had taken place prior to my arrival in
2011. | know that because | was the author of that report, if you remember.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): The figures | have quoted relate to that time period?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
That is right. If you remember, | was one of the HMIs who was actually inspecting on the
Metropolitan Police Service, so that was the report. When | came to give my account to the
Home Affairs Select Committee, obviously | had a brief, which was an account of the report |
had produced previously and really just concentrated on the summary of that report. Frankly, |
could not remember all the detail of it anyway, so | relied on that. The summary, as you have
said already, is broadly supported but highlights that there are still some things to do.

One of the key findings is that some of the data is wrong and it gives some cause for concern.
The two statements are not incompatible. Generally, we can now be confident that things are
good, but back in 2011 there was some cause for concern. | am aware because of my role that
there were some far more significant concerns about other forces, so, in terms of the spectrum,
that is all I was trying to get over with the point.

In terms of replying to Tom Winsor, | had had a few days off last week. | received the letter the
day before he appeared at the Home Affairs Select Committee, so | am afraid | personally have
not had the opportunity to reply to his letter, which may have helped to clarify what he
identified in his evidence to the Home Affairs Select Committee. | do not dispute it, just merely
tried to explain why | think there may be some disparity.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): | am aware of the comments made by other chief constables
across the country. These concerns are not limited to the Metropolitan Police Service. You
have talked about an internal investigation. Can you just briefly tell us about scope of that? Is
that looking across all crime types or are you prioritising certain ones?

Page 10



Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
will come back to one particular thing, which is about sexual offences, if you do not mind. |
wonder if the Deputy Commissioner could say a little bit about that inquiry.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We are looking at each of the allegations made during the evidence at the Committee. It is
important, first of all, because people get the impression sometimes that this is really simple
stuff. To give you the scale, there are 607 pages of guidance on crime recording, 184 separate
classification codes nationally for crime, 18 separate ways of recording a burglary. People use
language like ‘no crime” and ‘not crimed’. They are fundamentally different things, so there is
some real complexity behind what is a large set of data.

What we are doing and what we regularly do is we have our own audit regime. For some of the
high-profile crimes, for all of the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime’s (MOPAC) seven crimes
and for rape, we run an audit regime all of the time. That reports back into Crimefighters and to
Assistant Commissioner (AC) Byrne. It actually reports back where we are against the
confidence.

The first way a crime falls through the system is it gets recorded at command and control, ie
someone rings in and it does not get converted into a crime. That is the first check where it
falls out of the system. Then, when it gets converted into a crime, is it recorded as the right
type of crime? There is a perfectly normal reclassification of crime that goes on as you do an
investigation and also as you work through it. One of the changes we made in 2012 and why
we have asked for local audit to work with us is that many Members will remember from their
days on the Police Authority that a lot of that crime recording and classification was done locally
on boroughs. We brought it centrally and that was around consistency and the role of the Force
Crime Registrar, so there have been some system changes. As a result of that, when we did the
audit plan for this year, we asked for the auditors to actually look at that particular piece of
work. That keeps ongoing in terms of doing it.

In relation to the allegations made, each and every line, so | think it was a statement about 300
burglaries disappearing and then other things --

Joanne McCartney (Chair): There were burglaries, thefts, robberies being classed as thefts,
snatches and child abuse and rape.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
--Thefts, snatches, yes. What we have done is looked at every single one of those and we will
have an answer for every single allegation in terms of where they are, where they were, whether
it was time-specific, whether it still goes on now and a reassurance about what the systems look
like.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Are you actually dip-sampling and actually looking at cases?

Page 11



Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Yes, we dip-sample all the time. To give you an idea, with rape, it has been audited eight times
in each classification this financial year, so that auditing process is going on all the time in terms
of doing it.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Deputy Mayor, | believe, the internal audit in MOPAC is actually
doing its own investigation as well. Is that correct?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes. That is correct, Chair.
At the beginning of 2013, we asked the auditors, the Director of Audit, Risk and Assurance
[DARA], to conduct what was effectively an end-to-end review of the process to ensure that we
were aware of any risks and that we were risk-aware, but also to check the robustness of that.
That is very complimentary to the inspections that have been done in 2012 by HMIC and are
going to be done next year in the early part of 2014.

Roger Evans (AM): Yes, just something the Deputy Commissioner said, actually, about ‘no
crime” being different to ‘not crimed’. What is the difference? Can you explain that?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
When you see ‘not crimed” in these reports, what it will probably mean in most cases is that
there was a crime raised by the caller in the telephone call and it has not made it onto the
crimes system, so it has not been crimed. We talked about ‘crimed’, ie someone has recorded a
crime on the crimes system. For ‘no crime’, you have to have - and | cannot remember the exact
words - an evidential standard of proof that the crime did not take place. Let us say | report the
theft of my car from a car park in central London and you have evidence that actually | still have
my car and | am driving around in Hertfordshire or something. That would allow you to ‘no
crime” the crime. There is an awful lot of complexity in this as well.

One of the areas that was referred to in the evidence was the notion of “hugger-mugger’ type
crimes. Colleagues will remember when they came this propensity for people to sort of embrace
someone and dip their pocket at exactly the same time. There was a huge debate in the police
service about whether that was a robbery or a theft. It is now classified as a robbery, but the
crimes did not disappear. They are still in the crimes system. For the MOPAC seven, the crimes
still appear in the system, but the huge debate back in 2011 and 2012 was around whether
‘hugger-mugging’, for want of a better phrase, was robbery. People argued whether it fit the
definition - ie a theft, effectively, with force - or not.

Again, this is Home Office guidance and that is why | say those guidance rules will change again
on 1 April next year. There was a notification to forces about how you clear up or solve crime.
Again, the categories will change. This is guidance and instructions that have to survive
contact, be it here, Carlisle, Camborne or Newcastle, so they are written in some considerable
detail. That is why you end up with 600 pages of guidance and people called Force Crime
Registrars who are the guardians of this guidance and the adherence to standards. In line with
every other force, the Force Crime Registrar should have a direct link into the executive of the
organisation, ie report right into a chief officer, a report in to Mr Byrne as Assistant
Commissioner Territorial Policing, and that is to prevent any suggestion that as a crime manager

Page 12



or someone else | can say to the Crime Registrar, “Do not follow the rules”. That is why we have
put those checks and balances in place.

Roger Evans (AM): A ‘no crime” occurs because you have evidence that it has not happened?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Yes.

Roger Evans (AM): What would be the reason for ‘not criming” something?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
‘Not criming” it can be a system error, so it can be a failing in it. You will see those audits and
you will see what they look at in the audit. As | said, they look at the conversion rate from the
command and control system to the crimes system, so that can be an error. Someone can
forget to do it or someone can go and never put the crime complaint in, so we check that all the
time. The current audit on most crimes on that is above 95%.

‘No criming’ is a much more specific thing and requires a different level. You require a roll
called a dedicated decision-maker. That is the only person allowed to ‘no crime” crimes that are
already on the system.

Roger Evans (AM): ‘Not criming” is something that we should be concerned about because it
is something that should not be happening?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
There is a whole system piece. When you see those audit reviews, they usually report in three or
four areas. (1) They will talk about whether we have the crime classification right, so they will
always look at whether we had the crime classification right; (2) whether there is a high ‘no
criming’” rate; and (3) they will look at “not crimed’, ie the conversion.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The primary thing you find with “not criming” is it was not a crime. Someone alleges it was a
crime. Something wrong has happened. It might be a civil wrong, not necessarily a crime, or
somebody has fallen out with their neighbour and they are being abusive. It is not necessarily a
crime but they may call the police. It is at that point that the report happens. If you form a
genuine view, “This is not a crime but we might take action or we might give advice”, you ‘not
crime’. Then, as Craig said, if the crime eventually does get reported or recorded but later
information comes to hand which says this was not a crime, then it is ‘no crimed”.

Roger Evans (AM): OK. | think | understand. It is probably worth our while digging those
figures out to take a look at them.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
It is worth having a look and perhaps in a different forum going through just how those systems
work. It is as simple as someone alleging a crime on a telephone call and what is called an initial
classification, a two-digit figure. Bear in mind we are searching five and a half million records

Page 13



for this. By the time the officer does a visit, exactly as the Commissioner said, actually, it is not
a crime and you are talking about a civil dispute with a neighbour or something. The final
classification code will be different. An awful lot of analysis goes on.

Roger Evans (AM): Yes, sure.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): It might be useful if we can have perhaps an informal session.
Roger Evans (AM): That is right, yes. That is right. Who does the audit?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
It is a team that works with the Force Crime Registrar. They do the audit and then obviously
DARA’s team does its own audit and the HMI does an audit. Force Crime Registrars, of which
there are 43 in the country, are quite a small group. They provide advice to HMIC as well as
internally.

Roger Evans (AM): s there an audit of the sort that we would understand in this
organisation? John [Biggs, AM] and | spent the afternoon in the basement the other day
looking at reports which told us where systems were working and took samples of that--
Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The DARA review is all
about the control framework and looking at risk and where the pinch-points and potential areas
of concern are, so, if you are going to do a deep-dive and do some dip-sampling, you know
where to sample and where to look.

Roger Evans (AM): What is the reporting process for that? That is reporting to MOPAC?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): That is reporting to
MOPAC, yes.

Roger Evans (AM): Do you have an audit panel of the sort that the Metropolitan Police
Authority (MPA) used to have?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, an audit committee.
Roger Evans (AM): Are those reports and the minutes public documents?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | am sure there are public
minutes. | am not sure if all the minutes are made public.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, MOPAC): The Chair of the audit committee advises
at each audit panel which documents can reasonably be made public.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, so there are exempt
items and there are open, but that is the Chair’s determination.

Page 14



Roger Evans (AM): There would be a presumption in favour of them being public documents
not exempt items--

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Unless there is a reason
why not, exactly.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Can | move on now and look at the link between crime statistics
and target-setting because this was another issue that was raised? Former Metropolitan Police
Service Detective Chief Superintendent Peter Barron - and | am quoting here - said:

“When targets are set by offices such as the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, what they
think they are asking for are 20% fewer victims. That translates into ‘record 20% fewer crimes’
as far as the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) and senior officers are concerned.”

It was also suggested that officers” chances of promotion were linked to meeting those targets.
Perhaps | can start with the Deputy Mayor. To what extent do you accept the risk that crime
reduction targets can skew officers” approaches? Is MOPAC alive to that concern and what
steps are you taking to make sure that does not happen?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, it is a legitimate
concern if targets distort behaviour, so clearly we are alive to that concern, which is why you
have to think about how best to ensure that there is not systematic gaming with the numbers.
Anyone who is setting the Metropolitan Police Service targets will be alive to that.

What | would have to say is let us go back in time to the time when Sir Bernard [Hogan-Howe, ]
was an HMI. It is fair to say there were a number of reports carried out by the HMI at the time.

| think Kent was the seminal one - and certainly | am aware of this - and there were a number of
forces where there were real concerns to the level of a systematic massaging of numbers. | had
a meeting yesterday with Tom Winsor [Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Constabulary] and the
Mayor, and in Kent the kind of ‘no criming” incorrectly rates - | have them written down here -
were 25% for rape ‘no criming” incorrectly, violence 27%, and robbery 67%. We are aware that
you can have real problems and need to be aware of that. The first thing is that we are alive to
it.

The next thing is whether we believe setting a target is inherently a good or a bad thing. We
have no evidence that it is distorting the picture in a systematic way. In fact, if you go to
Crimefighters - and | have been on several occasions - what the MOPAC seven target actually
does is focus the resources on how to prevent crime, how to reduce repeat victimisation and
how to think about sustaining crime reduction over a period of four years. Of course, as part of
ensuring that we know that genuine progress is being made you have to look at things like the
‘not crime” rate for the MOPAC seven and the ‘no crime” rate for the MOPAC seven. All that
makes a great deal of sense to ensure that the numbers are not being gamed. In addition to
having that internal audit directly within the Metropolitan Police Service, that is why we have
that end-to-end process review by DARA, by our own auditors, and finally why the HMI come in
and do their sampling.

Page 15



Even back in January 2012 as a baseline, the ‘no criming” incorrectly rate was between 10% and
15% for that small sample. It was not three quarters or 25%. We are very alive to not having
targets for crimes where there is an issue of public confidence. We have not set a target for
sexual violence or rape or domestic violence. We have not set a target for business crime in
general because we know it is woefully unrecorded. However, for these neighbourhood crimes
that blight people’s lives, we think it is absolutely right that we set a target and that there is a
focus on crimes that have a victim, so that is our approach.

You will not see this chart, but this is going to be in your Christmas cards from me. It is quite
interesting to note that this year has been a very good year for the Metropolitan Police Service
with about a 10% reduction in the MOPAC seven offences over the year, which | think is a
great achievement by Sir Bernard [Hogan-Howe] and his team. Surprisingly, there was a
massive leap in public confidence from a low in the aftermath of the riots and before the
Olympics of 58% to a high of 69%, so an 11% increase in confidence in the Metropolitan Police
Service. That is a large sample of Londoners, being asked about their confidence in policing in
London as a whole. That is all good news for London.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Can | ask Sir Bernard the same question about targets? | think all
of us have been around quite a number of years on our Local Partnership Boards where you
often get complaints that we have to meet this target and therefore we are taking resources
from somewhere else or that we see other crime types perhaps rising or not reducing to the level
you want. What are you doing to make sure that, although it is vital that the MOPAC seven
targets reduce, you are not diverting resources so that other areas are suffering as well?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
would just say it is a good thing to try to get less crime overall. It is a good thing to aim for and
it has to be a good thing to have fewer victims. | do not think anybody is going to sit here and
say, “We are trying to get more victims of crime”. We count and in that sense we set a target.
We say we want less of whatever that number is. That is a public good. How we count that is
what we are debating, but the overall thing is to get a downward trend and that is what the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime has said we are seeing. What we have to do is to mitigate
the obvious risk that if you set a target, you set a perverse incentive. That is what we try to do:
to reduce that.

One thing is, as the Mayor said, we have three types of crime where confidence in the police is
critical in the reporting of that crime from hate crime to sexual offences to domestic violence, so
they are excluded from the seven. We still count them and we still want to see what is
happening. If you look at rape, in fact, the reporting of rape has gone up very significantly over
the last few years. We know, though, from all the research that probably 85% of rape is
unreported, not unrecorded but unreported. They do not tell the police. Although we are
seeing a rise in the recording of rape, we still know we are nowhere near what the reality is. We
have seen that from some of the historical things around the Savile case, so we know that that
is a real issue, but they have been excluded from the seven. We still record them, but no
targets.

Page 16



Secondly, we audit. As already the Deputy has explained, superficially, surely you can count
burglaries? There are some complications in the counting. It is what seems to be an arcane
world, but it is important now we are coming to talk about it. We need to understand. A proper
audit is put in place internally and that is kept separate from the operational people and
reported through a separate reporting line and through our immediate independent
accountability, which is the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime, and, thirdly, through our
national audit. We did not mention a further level, which is the Office for National Statistics will
not allow the police or the Government to publish their national crime stats until they have gone
through their check as well. They think that internationally we are in a pretty good place, but
none of us are complacent because we know they will not be 100% right.

The third thing, to be fair to the Deputy Mayor, is that what we have done is concentrate on the
crimes which people say they believe are the most serious, whether it is robbery, breaking into
someone’s home, or violence. These are important things. We are reasonably confident that we
are in a good position, but | am not going to sit here before you and say all the audits will find
they were perfect, because they will not be. There will be some errors, but it is whether it is
within the reasonable tolerance of errors and probably you want reassurance, as the Deputy
Mayor for Policing and Crime will, whether we are having a regime that promotes bad recording.
| can sit before you and look you in the eyes and say, “That is not what we want”. | want to sit
before you and say, “We have a 30-year drop in crime, which is the biggest we have ever seen”.
| do not want you turning to me and saying, “Yes, you would, because the crime stats are
awful”. There is a fundamental determination to get them right, but any challenge we will look
into and get to the bottom of.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): That is helpful. Stephen, it would be helpful if perhaps at the
end of your audit process you can let the Committee know the headlines of what you have
found and the action you are taking. We will need to return to that.

John Biggs (AM): | was interested, perhaps unsurprisingly, in a mix-up which was highlighted
in Tower Hamlets but seems to have covered the whole Metropolitan Police Service area. | do
not know whether it was a blip or a question of competence, but we have an interest in the East
End in doing some comparative figures on crime. We looked at the numbers on your website
and came up with a 9% increase in Tower Hamlets over three years and a reduction in all the
other boroughs. All hell broke loose and it was discovered that you had all your numbers wrong
on the system. It was all recalculated across the Metropolitan Police Service and we now have
different figures. It does raise a basic question about public confidence if the figures are
fundamentally wrong. It did turn out in the end that Tower Hamlets is still an outlier with an
increase compared to the other boroughs, but not as dramatic at the 9%, which would have
been quite horrendous, suggested.

Can you tell us a bit about that and how you are going to trap problems like that in future? It is
a fundamental problem - hopefully, a once-in-a-blue-moon problem - but go on.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): It

is quite interesting, John, that the reaction you report, which is that when people see crime go
up, they react. All hell breaks loose. Why is crime going up? That is just part of the pressures

Page 17



that borough commanders and police forces and, to be fair, accountability bodies feel.
Everybody wants to see them go down. When they go up, people do not like it. When they go
down, we query whether they are valid. It is a constant emotional battle and a rational battle to
try to keep these right.

What you should be reassured about there is that the figures were showing an increase - there
was one example at least where crime was not constantly going down - and hopefully by the
fact that it was raised as a problem and we took it seriously and did something about it. For me,
that is always a thing, whether it as this Committee or anybody. If it raises something, we will
look into it. If we are wrong, we will sort it out. We do have 800,000 crimes a year broken into
32 boroughs. There is always a risk of a local problem. Sometimes it is systemic when we miss.

John Biggs (AM): | know that actions are being taken to deal with that, but the fact was that
the figures were wrong. We would perhaps not have been so alarmed if we had known it was a
1.5% increase, although it was an increase, but it does raise a question of the competence of
the force in recording the data in the first place. | take it from you that you will be
guaranteeing that that will not happen again?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The error you are referring to was an error on the website, so the data in the source system was
fine. The error was on the website and it did affect Tower Hamlets. | was aware from the story
that ran in The Evening Standard around the work that we did, it was transposing data from
there and putting it in the public domain. It was an error like that. The source data is right.

John Biggs (AM): | suppose that the lesson is we live in an age where people live off datain a
way that they did not when we were all in short trousers and so you need to get it right.--

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
| would totally agree with you --

John Biggs (AM): --There is clearly a public confidence issue around this as well.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
-- but we have moved quite a lot towards getting a lot of data out there. It is exactly the same
as people saying, “Why do historic crime figures change over time?” Actually, some crimes get
solved that were reported years ago, so there is a lot of detail behind that.

That was one error with a set of data being transposed. It is regrettable and clearly we would
choose not to ever have any, but when you look at the amount of data that is now on the
website in terms of the crime figures down to borough level, stop and search figures and a
whole range of things that people want, we are trying very hard to get as much of that out
there as we can.

John Biggs (AM): There was one other interesting discovery in our pre-budget report, which

is that although crime has continued to reduce in London - coincidentally since 2008 when the
current Mayor was elected, although | do not think it is directly a consequence of the election; it

Page 18



might be - the rate of reduction of crime in London has considerably slowed compared to the
rest of the country.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): John, that is not fair,
actually. | have looked into this and it is looking at total notifiable offences (TNOs). | find it
really interesting that in 2001/02 crime went up. TNOs went up and then from around 2002,
not picking any particular year, crime went down very slowly in London, if at all. My first
appearance before the Home Affairs Select Committee was all about the point you are making.
From 2010, why is crime dropping less in London than in the rest of the country? It has gone
down in London by 1% but 3% in the rest of the country.

The interesting thing is that in the last 18 months, crime in London is going down much further
and faster than the rest of the country, so it is in a completely different position. That actually
means that the point you are raising is valid for a specific point in time, but it is far longer than
2010 to 2012. Crime in London came down very, very slowly for a long period of time relative
to the rest of the country.

John Biggs (AM): The old phrase is a bit incomplete, the one that says, “Lies, damned lies
and statistics”. It should have “and politicians” on the end of it as well because | think people
start questioning the veracity and the purpose of data if someone is going to say, “It depends
what period you look at it”, or, “That is not quite true”. The data does seem to speak for itself.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The data does speak for
itself. Crime came down very slowly in the capital for a period of ten years, but it came down
slowly and it continuously came down. It did not go up from 2002. Actually, that is a decade of
crime reduction at a relatively slow rate. What you have seen is 18 months of a very fast rate of
crime reduction not just for the MOPAC seven but overall offences. It is a question of whether
that can be sustained. In New York, you saw a 20-year crime reduction. These are all facts.
What | am trying to do is provide some perspective because; you are not providing the right
perspective in just taking those dates.

John Biggs (AM): From your point of view, | am clearly not providing the right perspective,
but | guess on those projections it might take about ten years for us to catch up with the rest of
the country. | am very pleased that this coincides with Sir Bernard’s arrival because it crowns
him in glory, the politicians perhaps less so, but thank you.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): No one is looking for glory
as a politician, as you know, John. It is just a service to the public.

Tony Arbour (AM): The most astonishing thing | have heard this morning is when the Deputy
Commissioner described to us the rules and regulations. | think he said that there were more
than 600 pages on how to describe a crime and 18 different ways of describing burglary. Then
the Deputy listed all the various different kinds of audit. What is happening at Scotland Yard?
Do you have some kind of circumlocution office where offences are passed from hand to hand,
saying, “How shall we describe this?”

Page 19



| suppose this is really a question for MOPAC. Are you going to urgently have some kind of cull
of the rules and requlations so that you can simplify all of this?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, Tony. | would love to
be able to say, “Let us cut through all the bureaucracy. Let us make it simple”, but the real
question we are asking the Metropolitan Police Service or any of the 43 forces is whether they
are following the Home Office Counting Rules. If the Home Office decides to make it the most
incredibly complicated process, then we have to make representations about what we can do to
simplify it and make it easier. That is broadly the point where we can lobby, but actually it is
driven by the Home Office setting the rules. Is that right?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
They are national rules.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
To be fair to everybody involved, it is a very accurate account of how big the rules are. The
reason those rules arrived is for the very debate we are having today. Firstly, people have not
been persuaded by the stats and they want some serious auditing of it. Secondly, criminal
behaviour changes over time, so we have heard about “hugger-muggers” and we have people
who surf tables to take people’s mobile phones. Mobile phone theft was not a problem 20
years ago. There were none. It is now.

We have to be fair to everybody involved. There is an argument that it could be simpler than
600-odd pages, but often it has grown because of the challenges from those who hold us to

account saying, “I do not believe your stats. Tell me what your rules are”. Both are true. We
could do with fewer rules, but we will always have them.

Tony Arbour (AM): Can you tell me about the point | made about the different levels of audit
and the way that things are classified? Are you employing lots and lots of people to do this?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
would not say “lots”, but we are certainly employing some. | do not think it is disproportionate.
We could give the Committee figures about how much we spend.

The problem we have is, if we do not spend anything, you would say, “How do you check?”
There is a question of how much we spend and in an ideal world you want to spend as little as
possible. We do want to make sure that when we report back to you, we did nine audits this
year, there was somebody to do them. If you look at the HMIC one, the one | carried out in
2011, it looked at 200-odd crimes when, broadly, there had been nearly a million crimes. This is
a very big pool of data. That was a very small sample. If | came to you and said, “We have
audited our crimes and we have audited 0.001%", you may not be reassured.

There are two things. We have to have a reasonable number of audits. We have to have them
in reasonable depth, so they are not just looking at a piece of paper but are going back, perhaps
talking to a complainant and checking the whole process with a telephone call. That requires
someone to do it. If someone else would do it for us, | am more than happy because the public

Page 20



generally would be reassured, but we have to have some level of reassurance. | do not want
Tower Hamlets to have robbery going through the roof and | do not know about it. We - the
organisation - and you would want to know. Some level of audit is always going to be fair.
There is a fair argument and debate about whether there is too much, but we could report to
the Committee what we spend now and perhaps what we have spent, so far as we can
determine, over the last few years.

Tony Arbour (AM): It is not a question of how much you spend. It is a question of how much
confidence we have in the audited figures at the end of the day, so that in itself, Chair, might
provide a discussion as to who should do the audit. It is the old Roman concept of quis
custodiet ipsos custodes? [Latin phrase, “"who will guard the guards themselves?"].

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
always think there are two reasons for making sure the crime stats are right. Firstly, you want to
know what we are talking about, what the trend is, whether things are going up generally or
down over a year, the strategic issue. At a managerial or policing level, you need to know, if
you are in charge of Newham, what is happening. It is no good having crime going through the
roof down on the borough road and the local borough commander not knowing what is
happening, so you need that stat to work out where you want to target your officers and what
you are going to do about it. Secondly, broadly, you want to know whether those crimes are
going up or down. We need some audit for the former - what we are going to do about fighting
crime - and accountability bodies need some reassurance about whether that process is
accurate.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): We will return to this, no doubt, at regular intervals in the future.

John Biggs (AM): Yes, the sunny uplands of outsourcing. As part of your business plan, you
are looking to outsource services as part of the drive to cut costs by 20%.

The first question is a quasi-ideological question. Is the outsourcing designed to make the
saving or is it part of a business that makes sense in its own right?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): John, | will remain
consistent on this and it is something --

John Biggs (AM): That makes a change. Good.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): No, it does not. | am
always consistent, actually.

John Biggs (AM): | am just winding you up.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): It is just that you choose to
wind me up, exactly. It is Christmas time. We should have a constructive discussion.

Page 21



The topic is wrongly labelled. This is not about outsourcing. The Metropolitan Police Service
has already made a decision before | assumed this office. Previous Commissioners were very
comfortable with the outsourcing of particular services. That has happened as a matter of
record. This Commissioner has made it very, very clear that there is an irreducible core of
policing that will not be outsourced under any circumstances and the Mayor and | stand behind
that. That is absolutely right.

What we believe in is that the process of market testing, benchmarking and competitive
tendering - that is essentially putting in-house services and supporting in-house bids where
necessary and where it makes sense against the market competitively - can drive out
unnecessary cost, deliver value for money for the taxpayer, and a better service for the
Metropolitan Police Service. We are looking at that in a number of areas where we believe that
can be the case, so this is a process we are embarking upon which is not driven by ideology at
all. It is driven by a pragmatic sense of where you can make significant savings through a
competitive process.

John Biggs (AM): | do not believe much of that. You cannot have it both ways. You are part
of an administration with a political flavour to it and | do not have any problem with the
principle that your political priorities drive where you are going.

The next question, then, is about how you have looked around the field at what other people
are doing and comparatively understood their mistakes and the opportunities. | take it that
your intention is to outsource up to £500 million worth of services and through that to achieve
savings in the order of £100 million. Is that right?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): John, no. The intention is
to competitively tender £500 million worth of services.

John Biggs (AM): Even if they are more expensive, you might be happy to still --

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The process of tendering
competitively, as you know because you have a local government background - and you pretend
not to know, but | know you know, John - is that you start --

John Biggs (AM): We live in an inquisitorial political context.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): --Yes, but | think the public
deserves to be informed rather than you trying to shift this into a rather anodyne, almost
1980s-style ideological discussion which leads us absolutely nowhere.

What | have learned, actually, from other forces because | am new to the landscape of how the
police have engaged with the market is that they have tended to go in what | would describe
euphemistically as ‘blob outsourcing”: “This is an area where we believe the market can do
something for us. Here is a load of services | am not particularly interested in because | am
interested in policing, my back and middle office. Please run them for me. Here is the cost

base and then take the cost out”. Actually, what we have learned, particularly in local

Page 22



government which has been doing this for 30 or 40 years, is that the process of competitively
tendering those processes ensures that the in-house service has every chance to drive out
unnecessary cost and make itself competitive. That is the process the Metropolitan Police
Service is embarking on in a number of areas. They are actually thinking of the back office and
how you can take out costs.

Even the borough where | became a local authority leader, if you say | am driven by ideology,
areas like human resources (HR) remained in-house and are still in-house today.

John Biggs (AM): Cood. This is useful. Carry on. Do not get excited.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Areas like IT, the previous
Labour administration decided to outsource through a partnership company and | was given
that as something | had to manage. | do not think this cut is as simple as you would like to
paint it. It is a process of recognising the value of competition in driving down cost and
commissioning services. It is important for the Metropolitan Police Service that we think right
across the piece that we are delivering services to the public and those services can be tendered
effectively.

John Biggs (AM): You think Lincolnshire had it wrong?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | am not looking, frankly, to
any of the models as the solution on how to engage the market. Packaging things up as a lump
and going to the market and saying, “Sort my problems out”, is not the way to approach this
particular problem.

John Biggs (AM): Lincolnshire had it wrong, then, by London standards?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): We are certainly taking the
approach that | have outlined and | am not going to comment on Lincolnshire, but | do not
think we have anything specifically to learn from organisations that simply say, “Here is a range
of services. Please provide them for me through a single prime contractor”. That is not a model
that we are going to look at.

John Biggs (AM): The only thing you have learned from other police forces is what not to do,
then?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): What we have learned is
that that approach - which the Metropolitan Police Service in some ways had wrong with
technology and | am saying this as an outsider looking at the Metropolitan Police Service - is
not a process that we are embarking on where you simply say, “Let us outsource the service and
retain an in-house team”, and actually double your costs.

The key to it is to think about the services you want to provide, having a very strong client

commissioning function internally that cannot be outsourced under any circumstances and, for
complex supply chains often, working with the market sometimes to manage a complex supply

Page 23



chain. For instance, a decision that has been made is around facilities management where you
have a partner that will be managing that supply chain more effectively. Then think about how
you drive out unnecessary costs in the services around facilities management. | know you are an
absolute champion of the shared services agenda and, when you structure contracts, enabling
contracts that can be shared across the Greater London Authority (GLA) family. Indeed, the
facilities management contract is one which other functional bodies can step into and use.

John Biggs (AM): It happens, Stephen, that | think that is a very thoughtful series of answers
and by provoking you we have actually had some useful stuff out of you--

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Do not do it too often.
John Biggs (AM): It is Christmas. Perhaps there is a modicum of goodwill there. Seriously, it
is thoughtful stuff. Is there a written form to your thoughts? Do you have a strategy that is
guiding you on this?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes. There is, in a sense, a
move towards defining a commissioning strategy which enables the Metropolitan Police Service
to decide which services are there to be commissioned, and a process and a timetable by which

you will benchmark and then competitively tender a number of services. In that sense, there is a
plan.

John Biggs (AM): All right. Can we see that and understand it?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | will certainly share with
you the documentation of the plan as it stands today.

John Biggs (AM): Who within the Metropolitan Police Service is championing this? Is it you?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | would think it is the two
gentlemen to my left, to my extreme left, the Deputy Commissioner.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Not politically, of course.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): No, | am not commenting
on your politics.

John Biggs (AM): | think most people are at your extreme left, Stephen.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
suppose almost everything that Stephen said. For us we have had a history of outsourcing. It is
not as though the Metropolitan Police Service has been immune to outsourcing, as John put it.

There has been a history of outsourcing.

John Biggs (AM): | am sure that is true, yes.

Page 24



Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Certainly, you quote Lincolnshire and | am not going to comment on Lincolnshire, but for me --

John Biggs (AM): Why is everyone scared of commenting on Lincolnshire?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not know enough about it, really.

John Biggs (AM): It is an innocuous place. | am sure they will not mind.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The principle of the thing for me is that there is an irreducible core of policing. The laying on of
hands and enforcement of the law is vitally important and the police officers do it. That is why
Parliament gives them those powers. Investigating crime is fundamental to why the police are
here. That is important. If you are asking me, we will have a strategy, but when 5.25 million
telephone calls come into our call centres, | expect to have some accountability to you about
whether we deal with that properly. Personally, | do not want to offshore it, perhaps literally, to
someone else. For me, these are some fundamental, core issues that policing is about and |
would fight to keep those within our grasp. For the custody people, nearly 300,000 are taken
into our care, so --

John Biggs (AM): Yes, absolutely, whereas in Lincolnshire custody has been to an extent
outsourced.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
That is their choice, but | am giving you my professional view.

John Biggs (AM): You will not be doing that in London?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): It
is a vital thing for which | should be accountable directly, not through a contract or anything
else. That for me is part of my irreducible core. The second thing is that this new process
allows --

John Biggs (AM): Do you have a settled view on the irreducible core, then? You have
included custody within the irreducible core. Are there other things - which are ideally written
down, so we do not delay the meeting - which fit within that?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The list is really patrol, investigation, call centres and custody. | could go on, but they are the
four major ones or the four major areas.

The second point | would like to make is that what this new process gives us, as Stephen has

said, is the opportunity for in-house bids to be made. The old system never had that.
Therefore, if you run criminal justice or if you run a transport department, we would have to

Page 25



give them some skills to get those bids together because they have never done it before, but it
allows them, not to create a company and bid to us, but to internally see if they can improve on
what they are doing. That is inherently a good thing. The public service, as you know, is
constantly striving to get better without the benefit of competition, certainly for the police, so
that is a way of driving things to be more efficient. This is, as | have said already, not a new
process entirely because we already had £200 million to £250 million - depending on how you
count it - outsourced and this is exposing a further £500 million to that rigour, whether it is
outsourced or not.

Your starting question was about what we have learned from others and from our own
experience, if you look at IT as an example. The first point is that we have to specify properly.
In our fourth generation outsource contracts, the specification is far better.

Secondly, we know we need the skills to challenge the providers about their charging regimes.
We have clear evidence that sometimes we ask for a thing to be done under a contract, the
people charge us a rate and we are not in a position to challenge that rate or we have been
overcharged. Sometimes it is blindingly obvious. If they put a wall in, you can work that out.
Sometimes they are very technical things and we need expert advice to say, “Actually, you are
overcharging there, we believe”.

Thirdly, we need to manage it, not just run to the end of the contract. Fourthly, genuinely, if
you have a good contract with a good provider, you can genuinely collaborate with that person
to have a good contract, provided - and | come to my final point - the contract is incentivised
for the provider to save money, not to spend our money. | am afraid there is clear evidence that
we have had contracts that incentivise a provider to keep charging us. In fact, it is entirely
possible, as we have seen particularly on the property side, to get somebody to drive the savings
out on our behalf and to be incentivised to do that.

| do not think that we have individually come to this collective blinding flash. Sadly, it is
probably a result of 20 years” development of the public service having outsourced contracts.
For me, | think it is a great opportunity and we have to be open about the fact. In part, we have
to do it. We should do it, but in part we have to do it. We have to do it. We have to find

£600 million of savings. What better time do we have to drive forward change when sometimes
we get trapped in the old ways of doing things?

John Biggs (AM): The point you make about monitoring is very important and | take that as,
among other things, meaning you need to have quite a strong client within the organisation
because quite often without outsourcing everyone is not in agreement. You outsource the
monitoring as well and you then get yourself into a terrible pickle.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Yes.

John Biggs (AM): There is the balance between quality and costs as well in terms of the

evaluation. Some things may come in cheaper but you know, having looked at places, maybe
even Lincolnshire.

Page 26



Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): In Her Majesty’s service, it
is going to be essentially between those two. It will always be something like 60:40 or 40:60
depending on the service or 50:50. It will be in that range. It has always been important to get
a balance.

John Biggs (AM): Obviously, | might as well declare that | am a trade unionist. | am very
proud to be one. Clearly --

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Which one?

John Biggs (AM): Currently the General, Municipal, Boilermakers and Allied Trade Union
(GMB). Historically the GMB and Unite, but GMB at present--

Tony Arbour (AM): Do they pay good money?

John Biggs (AM): --The question is about terms and conditions. It is not the obvious one: we
must defend the workers’ rights in all circumstances, although | tend towards that inclination. It
is about making sure we have well-motivated staff who feel that they have a stake and a part in
the organisation and that is an important part of the evaluation process. Again, everyone is sort
of nodding in agreement with this, some more than others, Sir Bernard a bit less than the other
two, | think.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): We will all nod together,
John. It is Christmas time--

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
There is a spectrum of nodding, John.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): --We were gauging your
reaction, yes. We all want a demotivated workforce. No, of course we want a motivated
workforce.

John Biggs (AM): Yes, of course we do. Presumably, also, we all love the European Union
and we are somewhat beholden to its tendering regulations, but in addition to looking at best
value in its wider sense, one needs to look at the past performance of contractors. You are
willing to do that as well, one assumes.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Absolutely. One of the
biggest problems for the public sector are poorly-let contractors and suppliers that have not
been properly managed in the past, not bringing in the expertise technically alongside the
procurement expertise. One of the things that | would be broadly critical of the Metropolitan
Police Service about is that we have not focused enough on that, but we are doing a lot to
address that and that has been a collective effort.

Page 27



John Biggs (AM): Finally from me because | have had quite a big run at this, it is about back
office functions and sharing across the GLA group or, alternatively, perhaps seeing a peer group
of fellow police authorities, although they tend to be scared of you because you are so big
compared to the rest of them, as we find with the fire authorities. Are you going to preclude
internal agreements as a consequence of your market testing exercise?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
No. As | think as the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime covered in the answer, if you look at
the one that is live at the moment, the one around property services, which is what | would call
a fourth generation contract, that is available to anyone else in the GLA family. For police
colleagues outside London, they will look with interest. Going back to your key points, if they
add value and if they are seen to provide quality, people may want to join them.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The only thing | would say is that we all need to keep an eye on the fact that the value-for-
money argument is a very big one. What money can you save? It is the point John makes: how
do you also get quality? The benefit of getting something very big is often you are getting
economies of scale.

The danger at times is becoming inflexible. Whether it is the fire brigade or education, we all
have different priorities or different missions in a way, but they are broadly public servants. The
only danger is, as you will know as well with political accountability, not all the political
accountability will agree about something. The thought that you get trapped in a horrible
bureaucracy - even more bureaucratic than we are - to change something that you need to
change now is a danger for all of us to guard against. | agree that where we can share, we
should.

John Biggs (AM): For the record, | was always as worried as hell by the Capgemini contract--.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Why did you sign the
contract, John?

John Biggs (AM): | did not. It was before my time. Not because it is a bad contract but
because of the sheer scale of it. It looked unwieldy and difficult to manage.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Commissioner, you mentioned your irreducible core and | am
glad you mentioned custody because that is incredibly important. | am a doubter on
outsourcing anyway, but there are things like IT. Occasionally, | can see it happening, but on
custody | definitely cannot. | also cannot see it on criminal justice. That really does worry me
because that relies on legitimacy, as Lord Stephens [former Commissioner, Metropolitan Police
Service] has described it in his recent report, and perhaps you would not get that with
outsourcing. Is that part of your irreducible core as well?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):

No, except to just explain what criminal justice means. For example, part of the criminal justice
process is the cells. That is the part that | have said | would not see outsourced. A large chunk

Page 28



of what we do around criminal justice is not the decision about whether or not we prosecute but
the administration of the file, how it gets transferred to the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS),
how it then comes back to us and goes off to the courts, so the administration of justice, not
the application of it, is where | see that there is potential for us getting better.

If we can do that internally, we have around 2,000 people dedicated to tracking all those
prosecutions and fixed penalty tickets. That sounds like quite a lot of people to me out of
about 50,000. That is about 4%, so it seems to me that there is some potential there for
efficiency. Bearing in mind what the strategy says, if we can be more efficient with what we are
doing by our people working better, supported by better IT, it may be there is no need for
someone else to do it. It is entirely arguable that for the transmission of data between
organisations and making sure that the files are right, there is an argument there to do what we
do.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | think it is quite dangerous.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Sorry, can | just be clear. On the fixed penalty tickets, this is from memory, so excuse me. |
think on the traffic side - speed cameras, etc - there were about 80,000 a year. What | am not
saying is that, if it were outsourced, the outsourcer would decide whether the fixed penalties
should get paid when someone complains. That is not their role. Actually, for administering the
tickets and the call centre that can record when someone is concerned or pays, it seems entirely
possible to administer it in a different way.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Actually, results on those tickets at the moment are quite poor,
so it would be great if they could be improved, but | am not sure about outsourcing it. If you
are expecting people to make internal bids, are you going to give them some help on doing
that? That is quite a complex process. It sounds like a very, very good idea, but units might
need help in doing that.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
That is what | was trying to say to John. What we are not going to do is train every manager in
the Metropolitan Police Service to do it, but where a unit is being considered for that, we are
looking at how we enable people to play a part in that. In a way, you could say they should be
doing it anyway because they are the managers so they should be making it as efficient as
possible, but in preparing for a bidding process we know we are going to have to give them
some help. They are not used to it and it is not their usual thing to do. We can help as well in
designing the process so that it does not become a bureaucracy. It should measure the things
that we want to know about.

Tony Arbour (AM): First of all, can | preface any questioning by saying that last week | came
up close and personal to Operation Safeway because | was visiting a constituent who lived in the
next street to me and | cycled on the pavement and | was stopped by somebody from the Traffic
Division on Operation Safeway. | want to say | took it like a man. | accepted the £50 ticket. |
am sorry that there was no discount for instant payment.

Page 29



The thing | want to say is that it worked absolutely like clockwork. The officer who stopped me
explained precisely why he was doing it, what the operation was. It was an absolutely textbook
operation. | was extremely impressed that everything was done automatically. He used his
machine to print out the ticket and so on. He explained everything and | was strikingly
impressed, indeed so impressed | was that | immediately emailed [Detective] Chief
Superintendent Jones [Traffic Command, Metropolitan Police Service] to say that the thing
works. As far as | am concerned, the thing worked absolutely correctly. Nevertheless, if you
like, | am a sort-of-satisfied customer.

Various matters, as you know, have been raised in relation to this. The first question is really to
the Metropolitan Police Service. How much resources have you allocated to this on a daily basis
and how has it interrupted what normally happens as far as the ordinary role of the Traffic
Division is concerned? | have to say | do not think it is terribly likely that in the normal course
of events, a police motorcyclist all geared up is going to stop somebody riding a Raleigh
Shopper on a suburban pavement. Can you tell me what resources are being allocated to this?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We have about 2,300 officers and Community Support Officers (CSOs) who are dedicated to
traffic policing generally either in the Safer Transport Command or the Traffic Department, so
they are all playing a role in it. Every day, from the first day it was started, it is around 750
officers a day or something of that order during the day. We started off concentrating on 166
sites. | think we are down to about 60 at the moment. The idea is we will carry on as long as
we can maintain this.

There have been two big benefits. | have to say you are the second public figure - | will not
name the other one - who received a ticket and was complimentary about the way it was done
and took it on the chin in the way that you described, so we are doing it the right way. In fact,
this morning | was being driven from Radio 4 and we received one of these brochures which is
handed out to everybody. We did not get it because we were driving badly, | believe.

It does explain quite clearly why we are doing it. | had not seen this before, but | thought it
was quite reassuring. It also explains the laws as far as cyclists are concerned as well as
motorists. We try to be informative and use education.

The indirect benefit that we have had is that some of the hot spots for where people have been
hurt have also been hot spots for crime, so the high levels of patrolling have worked in different
ways. People have said, “We have seen officers about”, so it has worked at that level. We
probably cannot keep it going forever, but | think we have learned something in the process of
this. What we have tried to do is to say that we collectively have been concerned - as | am sure
you have been - about the fact that there had been some deaths on the roads and it was
anything that we could do immediately. There are still, clearly, other longer-term things that
will need to be considered.

We have now issued over - | am just checking as we speak - 5,000 tickets, broadly two thirds to
motorists and about one third to cyclists. | do not think that one has been preponderantly
challenged. We have given a lot of advice. We have not just given out tickets. There has also
been discretion issued as to whether or not people receive a ticket. Hopefully, people in

Page 30



London have noticed it. In fact, | was talking to one of our staff this morning who is a cyclist
and he believes - it is anecdotal; | do not know what you think - in fact that cyclists, for
example, have started stopping at red lights. That is a good thing for their sakes as well as for
other people’s. Whether that is true or not | do not know, but there is some evidence that it has
had an impact.

Tony Arbour (AM): That actually was my next question. How are you going to be able to
demonstrate that all this effort has been effective?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
One of the things we will do is obviously look at the overall number of collisions. Number two is
to look at the collisions at the points where we concentrated our efforts. | would try not to go
too far because sometimes these stats take a while to gather, but it would be wise to just wait
another month or so and get these stats together and see what impact it had. | believe there is
some superficial evidence that it is working, but at least we are showing the people of London
that we are doing something about it.

Tony Arbour (AM): Do you think that issuing fines rather than simply stopping cyclists and
telling them that they have done something wrong is, if you like, going to have a greater effect
than simply being stopped? | have to tell you | have been a cyclist for | do not know how many
thousand years and this is only the second time | have ever been stopped by a policeman.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Firstly, we can show that we have not only issued tickets. We have given advice, so we have
done both. | say this for the criminal justice generally. You could say, “Why do you put people
in prison? You could just give them advice”. It has to do with the seriousness of the offence,
the reaction of the individual and sometimes the history of the scene or their own history. If
they have an offending pattern, then we tend to give a more serious outcome. There is no
doubt that a financial penalty makes people think twice.

Secondly, if we think about cyclists, one of the challenges with cyclists if you are car driver is
that you run the risk of losing your licence. You may get points on your licence as well as a
financial penalty and that is meant to deal with the fact that some drivers can afford to pay the
fine and therefore disregard the driving behaviour, so the two things are in place. As you know,
for cyclists, neither the vehicle is licenced, nor the individual. The only thing you are left with is
the potential for a financial penalty, or something more serious if someone is badly hurt. It is a
reasonable response and it certainly gets their attention.

Tony Arbour (AM): The London Cycling Campaign has complained that officers who are
involved in this have been giving out to offenders inappropriate advice. Among the things
which are cited is that cyclists are being told that they should be wearing helmets and, of
course, that is not a compulsory thing. We have had the case, you will recall, of the cycle which
had been adapted to carry children in the front and the suggestion there. | know that
anecdotes are not really the way to do it, but certainly the policeman who spoke to me was very
well informed on the matter. Are you certain that your officers are appropriately briefed on
these matters?

Page 31



Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
What we have found is we have had to brief them more just for this operation alone and
sometimes officers have forgotten their powers and they have forgotten, for example, what The
Highway Code says. | know you have not had the opportunity to have a look, but this actually
reminds people that rule 211 in The Highway Code says motorists should keep a careful lookout
for cyclists and rule 212 says when passing a cyclist, motorists must give them plenty of room.
It is not an option. They must do it. It gives similar advice to cyclists about not going down the
sides of large vehicles or to take care when they do.

What we have had to do is (1) remind officers about what The Highway Code says - and we all
probably need that at times - and (2) remind officers about the law. We have had at least one
of the sites where our officer has misdirected cyclists from what was in fact a shared space on
the pavement onto the road. That was brought to our attention. One of the traffic inspectors
visited the site and saw that we were wrong and we put it right for the briefing for officers there
later. By The Highway Code, by the law and by each site, we have tried to keep our officers
briefed. Occasionally, we get it wrong, but broadly they do understand the law.

Tony Arbour (AM): The long-term objective of this, as | understand it, is that the Mayor
wants to make London cycle-friendly. Do you think that this operation is going to contribute to
making London friendlier to cyclists?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not think it will hinder it. | cannot see it as a bad thing to advise someone to look after their
own safety. If they are breaking the law, then they have to take the consequences. It seems to
me most cyclists want to do it safely. They want to do it within the law, as should motorists. |
do not think it is a bad thing to remind people of that.

We all have to accept that over time, particularly in London with the congestion and the
numbers of vehicles, police officers become inured to seeing bad behaviour. There is a danger
that they just ignore it and think, “Somebody else will do that”. Who is going to do it? It is
reminding officers of their powers - your point - and it is also reminding them that having the
powers is one thing but doing something about it is another, so we expect them to play a part in
that safety. | would think that generally people would think it makes it therefore a safer
environment for motorists and cyclists and therefore a better thing and London would be better
for it.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | am very supportive of this. | am just very concerned about
the fact that cyclists feel they are being got at and | did watch an operation this morning where
it was only cyclists who were being given that leaflet. | am very glad you were given that, but |
do wonder if they spotted you and thought, “Here is a chance for a promotion”, or something.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not believe so. My belief is that the CSO who did it - it was just beyond the BBC - and saw
her go up to the driver saying she never looked in the back. | believe she did not and | looked
at the other vehicle and she gave it to others, | promise.

Page 32



Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Where was this morning, | saw a vehicle pull into an advanced
stop line (ASL). That vehicle was not given a leaflet. As far as | am concerned, in fact, he
should have been charged because it is illegal to pull into an ASL when the lights are red. | am
very concerned that there is this sort of imbalance still.

| was going to read you out some of the many emails and tweets | have had, but probably
people have said most of it. Can | just confirm? The Highway Code is not law, is it?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
No, it is advisory, but what --

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): It is advisory, exactly, so --

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): It
is advisory in the sense that it is common sense and it is helpful, but it is also advisory in the
sense of a prosecution decision. If someone is said to have driven carelessly or dangerously,
whether they have caused harm or not, if they have driven in accordance with The Highway
Code they have a good mitigation or defence. If they have not driven in accordance with it,
they run the risk of being prosecuted even more so. That is the standard.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): You say you have updated the briefing but | just wonder if it
needs constant reiterations because people are still being advised that they should be wearing
hi-vis and helmets and that just is not true.

Are you confident that nobody has been fined for something that is not a criminal offence?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Are we giving out things inappropriately?

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Yes.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
suspect there would be the odd one, but generally they are pretty good. If someone does feel
they have been wronged, there is a process by which they can complain by email or sending in
the ticket and a senior person will review it. If we have video, particularly at junctions, we will
have a look at that video and see whether or not the officer was right. We have become fairer.
| do not have the figure, but | can find it for you. Where people appeal, we often agree with
them, so I do not think we say, “Just because you were issued a ticket we will not consider it”.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): It is making a difference because | used to be the last cyclist
standing at red lights and | am definitely not anymore. | am often at the back of a group, so |
really do hope it is improving for all road users. Are you considering enforcing 20 miles an
hour?

Page 33



Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We already do to a large extent. The way we tend to do it because of the volumes involved is
that there is a piece of kit. | do not know if people have seen this but there is a box that gets
put on the side of the road and two wires are draped across the road. That will give over a
period of time a graph of the speed of the vehicles passing that point. You often find a
standard distribution, so there is 1% at 80 miles an hour and generally people under the limit.
What we tend to do is put that box down because people often think vehicles are travelling at a
different speed to what they are. The box records in that area for a period of time, say seven
days, whether it is showing a very high rate of speeders and then we enforce after that. We do
that and Traffic are the ones who generally do it.

We also have the possibility for community members, if they want to, to be trained up on a
[radar speed] gun. They cannot prosecute but they can record details of individuals who are
often local people and who are exceeding the speed limit and then we will at least advise them
about their actions. It would act as a warning should we later take a prosecution against that
person.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): There are councils now that are thinking of going for a default
20 miles an hour and they come up again and again against borough commanders who say,
“You can do that but we are not going to enforce it”. Could you perhaps consider giving some
advice? All these borough commanders talk about ACPO advice, which is in fact changing.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We will do that. The only thing they may be doing, to be fair to them, is of course the more
extensive the 20 mile an hour limit, the less likely we are to be able to enforce, not a lack of will
to enforce. It is just the extent given their resources and given the fact that over the last 20
years we have seen traffic departments diminish and diminish to a level where they struggle to
do everything. That is what they are saying. It is the scale of the task, not whether it is a good
or a bad thing to do. The things that work on the whole, as you know, are cameras. | have yet
to find somebody who will knowingly drive past a camera at speed.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): At the Transport Committee, we did cycling last
week and Transport for London gave us some figures on the one third/two thirds of penalty
charge notices (PCNs) issued to cyclists and other motorists. One of the interesting things they
talked about was how if cyclists have been stopped when they did not have lights on they were
given a PCN, but if they came in within three days and showed they had lights, the PCN was
cancelled. Do you have any idea of figures around how many have been cancelled and, if you
do not at the moment, are you able to give us that data? | found that a really positive thing. It
was trying to get behaviour change.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not. If I am honest, it would be a bit more generous than | would be, only for their own sake.
If the light was broken, it might be a slightly different view, rather than not having one, but that
is my view. We will check on the figures. | do not know the answer to the question.

Page 34



Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): | thought it was really positive in terms of behaviour
change that you were doing that, so | would like to see some figures if you have some.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): In
answering that, | am not the cause of it. That is all.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): Thank you.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): In fact, an anecdote. My partner has been stopped twice for
not having his lights on. He has working lights. He has been stopped twice for not having his
lights on and he said, “It is daylight”, and the Police Community Support Officer (PCSO) said, “I
think you should have your lights on”. There, it is almost a matter of opinion. It is very
subjective.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
You are right, except that there is one thing about it which is not an opinion, which is when the
lighting-up times are. These are published. When day and night start is a declared thing by
statute, so it is very clear when you have to have your lights on. There is a secondary test,
which is that if during the daylight hours visibility is reduced by rain or for whatever reason, you
are supposed to put your lights on for no other reason on a cycle than that it keeps you safe. |
am not going to get into this, but it seems to me quite a sensible thing to put your lights on as a
cyclist, the same way you see motorcyclists who have great benefits in safety by having their
headlights on all day. | would not argue all day, if it was me. | would just put them on.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | was not going to bring it up, but --

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The battery runs out a bit quicker, but --

Tony Arbour (AM): Are there any more confessions?
Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | have not been stopped yet.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): --
It seems to me the CSO might have been well motivated to keep safe that person by putting
their lights on.

John Biggs (AM): | am sorry | was absent for some central part of this item, but obviously |
have anxieties because of what has happened in the East End. Clearly, that was a hot spot in
terms of anxieties about cycle incidents. | have noticed lots of people hanging around and
stopping people, but clearly in the end there needs to be a behavioural change. Have you
talked about this already?

Are you confident that you have the balance right in terms of cyclists” behaviour in the East
End, particularly around the junctions that have been so problematic? Simply placing officers

Page 35



there has probably helped a bit of behavioural change. Do you recognise that motorists need to
change their behaviour and attitude as well?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
think so. We would always take advice. If people think that we have the balance wrong, we
would have a look. It has been a pretty impressive attempt to talk to lots of people. We have a
precise figure here - | will read it out - which is that 116,844 road users have been talked to in
three weeks. It is a bit too precise for me, but it is a large number. Clearly, people have been
out there talking to people and, clearly, people have understood that and heard it.

During that time, we have issued 6,500 fixed penalty tickets and reported a further 300 people
by summons. Where it has been more serious, taking the point earlier, first of all advice. If that
does not work, a fixed penalty. If it is thought to be more serious, then 300 people are going
through a court process. Of that number, cyclists have been given 3,400 fixed penalties and 16
have been reported for process.

Then we have been giving advice out particularly to large vehicles because what we know is that
where people have died, particularly on a cycle, it has often been as a result of a collision with a
large vehicle, so we have actually targeted those vehicles, giving out leaflets and advice. Of
course, many of the drivers who come to London with large vehicles do not live here and they
are not always used to driving these roads, you can get foreign drivers who are not always used
to the UK roads, either, so we have tried to use it as an education thing as well as a prosecution
thing. That has been a very significant number of people from large vehicles who have been
talked to. About 7,300 large goods vehicles and buses have been stopped and talked to.

We have tried to get the balance right, but if it is thought that in any area we could do more, we
will have a look.

John Biggs (AM): | do not want to delay the meeting more than two more minutes, if
possible. | know that there is a bit of a backlash against cyclists at the moment as well, so the
popular opinion in boozers and so on - | do not go to many - is that they need to learn how to
behave themselves, they are jumping lights, they weave in and out, they are reckless and they
put their headphones on. How many penalty notices - remind us - have been issued to
pedestrians who have caused difficulties for cyclists or to motorists who cut up cyclists?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): As
far as | am aware, none, because it is not a criminal offence to jaywalk. This is not the United
States of America.

John Biggs (AM): It is not a criminal offence to cut up a cyclist, either.
Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): It
is not a criminal offence here to negligently or recklessly walk into the road. It is to obstruct the

highway, but it is not to be careless in the way that you think about other road users, not in this
country.

Page 36



John Biggs (AM): That is interesting. As our streets become more animated with
non-motorised uses, we will start looking at behavioural issues in the round. | do not want to
penalise pedestrians. | do not want a headline that says, “Biggs penalises pedestrians”, but
clearly there are expectations of behaviour from all people. The most important one, in my
view, are people in motorised vehicles because, when you have a tonne of metal around you,
you can kill people without even scratching yourself.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): If
you could just delay that proposal for a short time until we have got over this campaign, we are
struggling to keep this one going.

John Biggs (AM): No, | am not advocating penalising pedestrians. | am advocating a
comprehensive programme, rather than a short, sharp thing, which is about changing the
behaviour of motorists and other road users, but thank you.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
What we have learned here is that we may not be able to sustain this level for years, but what
we have learned is that we can sustain it for a short time and then keep reminding people about
their obligations and education.

John Biggs (AM): OK. Can | just signal one other thing which will come up in the future,
about the liability of cyclists for incidents or injuries that they may cause? Obviously, this is not
a popular subject, but it is something that does come up. There is a general libertarian view
that says that we do not need to register cyclists and | tend to that view as well. As the
numbers increase and anxieties increase, one can conceive of us moving in that direction. Do
you have a view on this?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not think I would express too much publicly. The main issue is not whether in principle it is
right or wrong but, bureaucratically, it could be very difficult to enforce. That is a major issue.
It would be a cost. | suppose what you would have to show is that the problem is so great that
it is worthy of all that administration. | am not sure it is yet.

John Biggs (AM): No? OK. | would tend to agree with that.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Moving on to the student protests, do you feel that the police
response was proportionate?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Just to remind people, what Jenny is talking about is the events at Senate House and the
University of London Students Union on 4 and 5 December. As people may know, there was a
sit-in, which had been arranged for reasons that | will not go into. It is not really for us to take a
view on that. | believe that the university asked for the people to leave. Security tried to get
them out. On that first day, we made about four arrests. Generally, there were not too many
problems and eventually that protest subsided. It was a more difficult situation on 5 December
when officers were facing more challenges. On that day, we made 41 arrests. There have been

Page 37



some suggestions by some of the protesters that in fact officers were aggressive on the day.
We have now had three complaints and we are looking into those.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | read somewhere this morning that the police officer who has
been seen on YouTube punching somebody is not going to be --

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
That is not correct. | checked before | came in because, like you, | saw that. | was looking at
the BlackBerry. We have three complaints around assaults and oppressive behaviour. They are
all still currently under investigation.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Where is the point at which you get called in because the
university staff cannot cope?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We can talk in general rather than in detail because | just do not know whether some of the
arrests we have made are relevant to this particular case. What generally happens is that clearly,
this is private property, on the whole. If it is in the City, it is generally within private property,
which is a civil trespass. The occupier generally has the right to ask people to leave or to
remove them and we generally get involved when there is that type of dispute is if there is a risk
of or actual breach of the peace. That is when we tend to get involved. Of course, if people
then move into a public area and there is the potential for breach of the peace or other
offences. That is probably when our more usual powers kick in.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | actually went on the demo on 11 December and it was quite
amazingly relaxed. There were a lot of people were saying inflammatory things, but actually the
general feeling was quite relaxed and so on. There was not a police officer to be seen, which |
thought was absolutely great. How many arrests were there on 11 December?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
am not sure there were many at all, if any, on 11 December, actually.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
| think there were one or two, from memory.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Certainly very few. As people may know, of course, the protesters were in different places, we
did our best to facilitate protests but not allow people to break the law.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | thought it was handled pretty well on 11 December because
there was no provocation. Obviously, you know that if protesters see riot police, the whole level
of anxiety rises and everybody gets more aggressive, so it worked very well. | would also like to
commend AC Rowley who did stay in touch with me and tell me what was going on. In fact,
also, from Traffic, Chief Superintendent Glyn Jones has been good about keeping me
up-to-date on all the Operation Safeway stuff and it probably does stop me saying a lot of
things | might say. It is quite a good tactic on their part, probably.

Page 38



Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We like to keep people informed.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Of these arrests, how many people have actually been
charged? | am curious if the arrest is a sort of precautionary activity.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
honestly do not know, but we can find out for you.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): We are dealing now with a whole new group of students who
are going to be politicised even more if they have bad experiences with the police. It just seems
to me this is not a very healthy thing to happen for London if we start getting more. A lot of
students who were involved in the previous protests in 2010 have probably moved on by now,
so this is a new generation of students. If they get politicised and become anti-police, it is not
good for anybody.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
should not say too much about these particular cases and we will treat them in exactly the way
we treat everyone else in terms of prosecution.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): | want to move on to a different area around child
sexual exploitation. | am sure you will have seen the Children’s Commissioner for England’s
report, If Only Someone Had Listened, on this very subject. Within that report, they found really
concerning trends in the response of partner agencies in this area. Local responses lacked
leadership, failed to commit adequate resources, had limited strategic planning and so on.
There were some really staggering things that came out of the report as well when they talked
about how it is almost widely recognised that there are paedophiles who prey on young children
but the idea that children abuse each other, perhaps in gangs or groups, is rarely acknowledged.
The study also found that one in 12 of the young people interviewed said that they were likely
to report crimes of sexual abuse, so there is clearly a huge issue there. Do these findings really
resonate with your experience working in partnership with others who would like to tackle this
very serious issue?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
None of us can be absolutely sure about this because of the lack of reporting and recording. It
is quite difficult.

We do know that it certainly chimes around the gangs. We already know that particularly with
young girls and women there is an issue. One of the groups we work with, which gives us some
information, is the Safer London Foundation, which is the Metropolitan Police Service’s
independent charity. This year, we asked them to help around gangs and young girls to see
what we could do because mainly they were victims rather than offenders. We know that this
year they worked with over 1,000 vulnerable young women and girls, so that is one group.
Bearing in mind we think there are just over 4,000 people in the gangs, this is quite a significant
number.

Page 39



Over 200 boys have been put into a group work programme that models healthy, non-violent,
intimate relationships. This is their term. It “challenges hyper-masculinity and promotes
positive images of women and men”. That is quite a long sentence, but we all know what that
means, which is not only helping the girls but challenging the boys and the men about their
behaviour when they are in gangs.

There have been over 60 parents and foster carers who have gone through an education
programme and who have been in a similar position. There have been over 700 people trained
as practitioners and professionals working with vulnerable young women, including our own
Metropolitan Police Service officers.

What we can show is that that is a cohort of people. | am not saying they are the only people,
but there is a significant number. We struggle to identify exactly how many, but we
acknowledge the report and say that we think it is representative of the problem.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): One of the issues in the report is about the issue of
professionals working together and perhaps they do not fully understand the realities of child
exploitation. The inquiry team continued to hear references to children “putting themselves at
risk”, rather than the perpetrators being the risk to children. Do you think attitudes are
changing amongst your officers and how are you tackling this issue of myth around victims and
perpetrators?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Part of that training was actually for some of our divisional officers as well, so we are actually
getting an outside body to train our people to be aware of that. There is no doubt there is a
risk. One of the things we ought to be proud of in London is that the 32 boroughs, the local
authorities, the police and others have some pretty strong relationships and some good systems
in place. We would all accept we are not perfect all the time, but there is a genuine attempt to
identify the youngsters who are at risk and do something about it. We have some good
systems, but it does remain a significantly under-reported area.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): You said you had 700 professionals trained and that
included police officers. Are you looking to roll that out wider?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
We can do. It will only be limited by the ability of us to do it by time and cost. Certainly, it is
something that we will continue to do. We have concentrated initially on the specialists. You
could say, “What about the response officers and the neighbourhood officers?” The only
answer is that all the time there are so many things for that group to be trained in from
psychiatric illness to these issues we are talking about now like domestic violence, so we tend to
train on recruit. At refresher time, we cover these things. That is my only hesitation to saying
we will roll it out more. DVDs as well are a good way of getting over the simple point, as you
said, the important one, that the child is the victim, not the cause.

Page 40



Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): It is very important that your eyes and ears, your
frontline police, are regularly reminded about some of these issues. How are you working with
the London Safequarding Children Board around this issue of child sexual exploitation? Are
there specific things that you are taking responsibility for to try to tackle the problem?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
First of all, the Metropolitan Police Service, as you know, is represented on all 32 local
safeguarding boards. At a London level, the Chairman of the Safequarding Board has agreed
and signed off that protocol, so we actually have a protocol between us that is common across
the 32. We are represented at borough level and also at detective chief inspector level from the
specialist unit, which is serious crime and organised Five, which you will know. We sit on various
subgroups, including where there is a child sexual exploitation (CSE) subgroup, and have
different levels of involvement depending on the borough. Locally, in the boroughs, they are
driving forward the implementation of that CSE protocol. Having had that report, we have
signed off the protocol with our partners and now we are doing our best to make sure we
implement it.

We have also introduced a safeguarding dataset for all 32 London boroughs to assist those
boards in capturing and comparing key performance data in relation to children. One of the
problems in the past has been where the data is and how you can compare. We hope in time
that will allow us to compare across London and also see where this new protocol is working.
There are some fundamental building blocks that put us in a good position, and show that we
have broadly agreed that that report has some good ideas and we have tried to do something
about it.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): Excellent. Thank you very much for that. Can |
move to the Deputy Mayor on this? How does the Mayor’s Strategy on Violence Against
Women and Girls help set a framework to tackle the issues that are raised in this report?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): As well as refreshing the
strategy - that was launched at the end of last month - on the same day we published a
strategic framework, a toolkit for boroughs to help them in this particular area. That is
something that is alongside the strategy.

In addition, how we are helping as well as having a toolkit or a framework - and we also have a
seat on the London Safeguarding Children Board - is resource some of the projects that the
Commissioner mentioned, so we actually support the Safer London Foundation in Croydon with
a project around prevention.

| think the really important thing is to ensure that not just the police but all the agencies - so
particularly those agencies in the multi-agency safequarding hubs - are aware of the issues and
are able to ensure that they are alive to them and that the referral pathways work. That is
something that the strategic framework is designed to help.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): How are you challenging partners to make sure that
everything is far better co-ordinated, to try to tackle this issue?

Page 41



Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The challenge will come to
see the response to the strategic framework and ensuring that the toolkit is adopted on the
ground. Also, we need to make sure that we collectively find a framework for seeing that we are
aware of the risk. | think that is something that is in development. One of the things for
violence against women and girls in general is that we try to find a way of being able to measure
the impact that we have in these particular areas, and this particular one is particularly hard
because of the under reporting and under recording that the Commissioner mentioned. We
have to find ways of building that confidence. That has to be an intrinsic part of what we do.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): | think the report stated that it is really important
for pre-emptive action to break up networks that exploit children rather than waiting for a child
revealing that they have been exploited, so it is that pre-emptive action.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): What progress is MOPAC making to try to bring
everyone together to develop an approach to really help identify these young women who are at
risk and to do work with them?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): At the moment, within the
Violence Against Women’s and Girls” (VAWG) panel there is Carlene Firman who | think used to
work with the Office of the Children’s Commissioner, London boroughs and the Metropolitan
Police Service. She is now with the Ms Understood Partnership. Our task, we are thinking
about this issue to find the proactive identification. That is something that they are working on
and | am happy to report back to the Committee on progress with that particular strand of work.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE (Deputy Chair): We are going to be doing a lot more work on this
area in the New Year, so we will pursue more detail then. Thank you.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): | have some questions for the Commissioner or Deputy and then
a couple for MOPAC. Can | just start off and say to the Commissioner, over the years from my
own professional background as a health visitor, | have been involved in working with police and
in partnerships and also in my association with my boroughs over the years. | really do not think
that the police staff gets the credit for the work that they do. | would really like to put that on
record, in congratulating your staff for the work that they do in this most challenging area, and
they have been doing it for some time.

When you look at some of the commendations in the work that are done at borough level, it is
in this mostly. | was recently privileged to see some members of the Metropolitan Police Service
being commended for the absolute excellent work they are doing to stop this criminality.

One of the things that the report highlighted was this confusion over whether sexual
exploitation is predominantly a child protection or crime disorder issue. You could say it does
not really matter, but | think it does because the report has highlighted it and it seems to me
that if you had somebody veering one way there would be one way of dealing with it. If one

Page 42



of your boroughs or whoever decided, “Oh well, we will take the criminal disorder way” they
would operate in a different way, whereas another borough would say, “No, this is
predominantly child protection” and maybe not prioritise it as another borough would. What
clarity have you given to the force about this? Where do you sit on this?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
think it is both and not either. What | think we are weakest at - | think you have been kind
enough to comment on the child protection issues - | think we are strong but not perfect on
that. I think where we could be criticised is whether we go out proactively to see are there
groups of men, usually, who are targeting girls. |think that is where, if you regard it as a crime
issue - we go looking for phone thieves; we go looking for car thieves and burglars - we would
need to do more work.

| suspect that one of the reasons is that - remember where we started today - what normally
prompts our investigation and our patrol is the report of the crime. Where we are vulnerable
here is we are not getting reports of the crime. | suspect actually spotting that bad behaviour
we could probably be better at targeting these people.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Would you not be dealing with stereotypes then because, again,
there is an issue about a victim being a certain type, a perpetrator being a certain type. How
would you go about targeting a sexual predator?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
think it is quite hard because, as you know, what you often have is perhaps groups of males and
groups of young females. To some extent, that is normal behaviour depending on the
preference of the individuals. It could be young males and males but generally we are talking
about males predating, | think, on young females.

To some extent in any community that is what is going to happen. As people grow up, you find
people looking for partners and they will have that sort of behaviour. Sometimes they group
into not gangs but just groups of friends, and what you have to spot is when it transmits over
from being a normal, maturing relationship to somebody who is targeting youngsters who are
vulnerable and either using drugs, alcohol, whatever, just their age, to dominate the individual.

| think you are right that it is not going to be easy to spot. | suppose what we have to do is talk
to people in a community and they will tell us what is happening. | do not think it is something
where generally one community will go to a borough in the north, having lived in the south.
They are not going to wander around doing this. It is going to be local. It is going to happen
locally and generally people will know who the bad guys are.

| think provided we are talking to people then we generally pick that up. Whether or not we are
attuned enough to listen carefully | am not sure.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):

There are some other ways to pick up without stereotyping. For instance, we know that the
experience over recent public incidents has been very much around the targeting of vulnerable

Page 43



people. There is a lot of work being done at the moment at a borough level about repeat
missing persons and what drives it, and particularly with missing persons from care homes or
from assisted placements, to try to understand if there is something more going on there. With
that sort of analysis | think you can begin - as the Commissioner said - to get a feel for: do we
have a problem?

| think you are absolutely right. First of all, it is that recognition of the problem and then, to
some extent | am pretty ambivalent over who deals with it but that we address the problem,
either in a child protection way or an investigative approach. | think there will always be a
balance with those. First and foremost, it is about protecting the person and then tackling the
perpetrator.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Let me carry on because the report also identified an area
around how victims are treated because this is as important for so many reasons that we do
need to go into. One of the quotes in the report was a young person reported, “They made it
feel like it was my fault”. This can mean that they are then not adequately protected. The
police, in particular, noted that they struggled to engage with children and young people and to
know what support to provide to victims.

You have spoken about the work coming from the foundation, but what more do you plan to do
following the release of this report?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
First of all, we will reflect more on it because | do not think it is straightforward. What we know
is we have changed our neighbourhood policing model, which | know there has been a debate
about but the genuine intention has been to get more officers walking and meeting
communities. It will take a couple of years to get everybody there but that is the first intention.

The second thing is we already have officers dedicated to schools and we have officers in
schools. I think there are over 900 secondary schools within London and we have officers
dedicated to over 200 of them. If | can get my way we will get a few 100 more, ideally all of
them, but with a genuine intent to engage with the young people in secondary and feeder
primary schools.

Then thirdly we have quite an active strategy around engagement for young people. We can
always do more but from Keeping Internet Kids Safe (KIKS) to all the other projects we have,
they are very important ways that police officers are seen as people and not just as a uniform.
We are always trying to promote more of that.

| think at a time when we are trying to cut if we are not careful we de-prioritise that and there
would be a risk of that for the Borough Commanders and for the Metropolitan Police Service. |
think we have to keep an eye on that. There is a determination - for the reasons you say - to
keep talking to young people particularly. It is not always easy for us to engage with them.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): A last question | think to the Deputy Commissioner. It is in two
parts. What is the linkage between the 900 school officers, the officers who are involved in

Page 44



child protection, then the regular crew who would do the crime and disorder thing? Where does
this feed up the chain because | cannot make a chart of it?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Right. | mean for information like this it all goes through our briefing system and our
intelligence system, so the information flows through. You will hear officers talking about,
“Have you put a Crimint on?” What they mean is, are they putting information on a system.
That system goes through internally in terms of that.

At a borough level it works through the supervision levels. At a central level there is always a
decision about when does it move from a borough to a central team and those sorts of things.
Those are managed much more by relationships and discussions than saying that if you get
three offenders it goes to a central team; if you only have two if stays local. That is much more
a debate and discussion probably with the Detective Chief Inspector (DCI) on a borough with
the central team in terms of the work around it.

The way the information works - and that is why the point around the local policing is so
important - it comes literally from a PCSO outside a school, let’s say, this afternoon as school
breaks up picking up some little piece of information all the way for something that comes
through a safeqguarding meeting or a particular child protection issue. The way that we get
visibility on that is through a criminal intelligence system and briefings.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): That is tracked and that is monitored by --

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
That is tracked and monitored so we can --

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): -- the sergeant on the team?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
The sergeant on the team and the briefing sheets are there for all of us to look at and see. |
could go back now or go on my laptop and tap into the briefing for Enfield this afternoon,
whatever it might be.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
One of the things that is important that London has and not everywhere has, are these MASH-
London Safe guarding Children’s Board centres that the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime
referred to earlier. You have these multi-agency hubs where you have individuals from each
organisation who have immediate access to their own IT, their own intelligence, and sit in the
room. The best examples | heard was where a child has not turned up for school one morning,
where we went the previous night to a domestic violence incident and we found out that
someone went missing two weeks” ago, and we had not had a report.

It seems to me that all the agencies have people sat in that room able to talk about a child as a

person not as, “We went to a command and control incident last night. You have an education
report. We have a social service report”. | think that is an immediacy that the rest of the

Page 45



country does not have. Often it will be, “We will wait until the meeting and then we will discuss
the cases” but on a 24 hour basis you have a group of people there who are checking out what
happened these last 24 hours, “Have we seen that child before? Is it unusual for them not to
be at school? Did something else happen that is relevant?” | am not saying they are perfect
yet, but | think it is a good thing in our system that is better than five years ago.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): | have been privileged to observe that and I think it is good that
we are able to put it on the record and bring it out to the public. If that is common across the
Metropolitan Police Service then we are absolutely in a good position. For me it is just about
maintaining that level of professional activities because individuals change. You can get
somebody who is passionate and they are driving onwards with a fabulous sergeant who | would
just want to take him home and have him with me always. You just worry that if he left that
things would change.

Deputy, are you saying then that you have somebody looking at the report specifically at its
findings and you will be reporting back? What is that timeline reporting back with any
implementation issues?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
| do not have the detail of the timeline. | know you have a meeting in January or February
where you are looking at this issue and the lead is coming, so | will make sure you have an
update on the timelines to report back.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Yes because that would fit in with our work. That is what | was
just trying to press to you that when we are here next time that we have something of
substance.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Yes, always.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): | have a couple of questions for the Deputy Mayor for Policing
and Crime. Will this area of sexual exploitation be covered by your new gang panel?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Interestingly enough we
had a mobilisation meeting of the Gangs Panel, which was not the first formal meeting but it
was really to --

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): What is a mobilisation?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): It is to agree terms of
reference, to think about the work programme, think about the membership and think about
the function and the form of the new Gangs Panel. This meeting - because | like to warm up for
these Committee meetings - happened at 8.00am this morning. In fact, the issue around girls
and gangs has been raised both in the Gangs Panel but also in the Violence Against Women and
Girls Panel, and yes it will form part of the work programme.

Page 46



Interestingly enough, | was introduced to Susan Tranter in a meeting with the Commissioner,
who provides the education perspective. It is actually three facets to this that we need to think
through. We have to think through the child protection, which cuts across both policing and
social care. Obviously the law and order response, but | think also how educationalists deal with
this. One of the shocking things that was stated by Carlene Firmin at the Violence Against
Women and Girls (VAWG) Panel is the response in some schools to when a rape occurs inside
the school, and almost not really feeling that the appropriate response to the victim applies. It
is often moving the victim out of the school as opposed to thinking about the circumstances
that led to the rape. Yes, it is forming part of the Gangs Panel and it remains a topic of
discussion in the already existing VAWG Panel.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Just update us about your Gangs Panel. Do you chair it?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Like the VAWG Panel we
have co-chairs--

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Violence Against Women and Girls?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, Violence Against
Women and Girls. Sorry to use the acronym. Joan Smith and | are both co-chairs. | think
Members have had the information about the Gangs Panel which is co-chaired by myself and
Ray Lewis.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Right. OK. You meet for breakfast at 8.00am?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): No, this was not a formal
meeting. This is what we would describe as a mobilisation to ensure that the first formal
meeting will take place in | believe January. | will check, but it is early in the New Year. It is
essentially a prep meeting to get the form and the function of the Gangs Panel right, and to
agree a work programme.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): OK. We can get more information?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | think it is the end of
January/early February is the first meeting. | can get you the precise date.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): OK, fine. The idea of you mobilising at 8.00am is very
interesting--

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Normally | am dropping the
children off at school, but as schools have just broken up | was able to make 8.00am, yes.--

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Does it involve tanks and armoured cars?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): No, it was a very
proportionate response this morning.

Page 47



Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): If we are talking about 8.00am, | was listening to the
Commissioner clearly doing well.

Victoria Borwick (AM): We were all listening to the Commissioner.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): You are all ahead of me on
that one.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Sticking up for London’s best.--

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): --It has gone full circle this
morning.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): | thought you did a brilliant job this morning at 8.00am, Sir
Bernard.

Going back to MOPAC, we look forward to hearing what you are doing with the Gangs Panel. |
have one last question and that is something that the Commissioner touched on. That is about
the issue of attitudes of gang associated young men; well, as we are told. Again, if you have
had the privilege of meeting some of them, many of them come with a particular way of
approaching women and young girls and this was highlighted in this report.

It seems to me MOPAC would be in a good position to do some work around this issue, either
through MOPAC or commissioning, the foundation or other organisations, to work around
attitudes towards women and that relationship with young men. | know Kids Company do an
awful lot of work with young men to challenge them about their approach to young women.
Are you exploring any of this work that you could commission?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | am happy to take that
specific idea forward. You are right, absolutely, that comes through. Very early in my term last
year | was at a practitioner conference exposed to some of the attitudes that you are describing
and the academic research was around that. It was not in London. It was outside London.
There is an evidence base there and | think we need to be careful about ensuring that we build
on that. But, yes, it is an absolutely appropriate area for us to think about a programme.

| have been handed a note. What does that say? “Gangs Panel is early February. No date has
been finalised.” That was the last question, though. | am answering a different question. It is
early February, no date has been finalised for the Gangs Panel, Jeannette.

Yes, it is a good idea. Perhaps we could talk outside this Committee how we take this idea
forward?

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): Yes, it should also be part of the criteria for your mentoring

team. That is from my point of view, but can you say whether it is and if you cannot then we
could perhaps get a note from you.

Page 48



Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): One part of the VAWG
strategy is about this education and dealing with some of the issues around attitudes of young
men to women. That is certainly having appropriate interventions, but | think what you are
talking about is commissioning to get insight and about how to get that to work better--

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): There is a lot of expert work. You could have a talk to the Kids
Company because this is --

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, | am happy to do that.
| have met Camilla [Batmanghelidjh, Founder and Director, Kids Company] before, yes.

Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): -- boyhood to manhood. A number of them have been doing
this for the last ten years, the Stephen Lawrence Foundation; you know just talk to them about
it.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes, sure.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Deputy Mayor, Joan Smith, which Joan Smith are you talking
about?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): She is the co-chair of the
VAWG Panel.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Yes, | know but --

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The one that writes in the
Independent occasionally.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Ohitis. All right, fine--
Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): The feminist, Joan Smith.
Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Sorry?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): To give her a label; | mean
well known.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Yes. OK. | wonder about going back to the sexual exploitation
of young women. There are new crimes now of course because of online abuse of young
women?

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Is this something that you are actually trying to work towards
monitoring and being aware of and actually bringing charges against people?

Page 49



Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | am certainly aware of the
shifting nature of crime patterns, so the sense | have is that very often the challenge that
certainly the Metropolitan Police Service and other agencies have is ensuring that homes are as
safe as they can be. As the streets tend to get safer, that really is an issue - and you are right -
there are these threats that we are well aware of, the bullying and the sexual exploitation of
people in their own home. Yes, | think that is one of the reasons why policing, quite rightly, are
thinking about the appropriate response to these new threats.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Commissioner, have there been any cases yet?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not know off hand. First of all, | think we are guided to a large extent by some Director of
Public Prosecutions” (DPP) advice on this, because sometimes as people meet in the street they
abuse each other, sadly, or in schools and that sort of thing happens. The question is whether it
is a crime. Of course, one of the difficulties on the internet is everything is recorded so people
talk and they abuse but the evidence is not there.

| think all I am trying to say is two things. One we are aware and we wait for reports. | suspect
we cannot intervene and police the internet or all the social networking that goes on. There has
to be a trigger before a crime is reported. It may be for others to think about their
responsibilities in education or in the way that the internet is run. The police can do so much. |
think the volume of interaction will mean that we cannot criminalise everything, but we are
interested in that which is crime: racial abuse, somebody who is abusing a child. These are very
important things but | think the overall scale of the interaction means that police alone must
struggle to change some of the fundamentals that are in that system.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): The thing is that because it is a relatively new crime you need
new ways of tackling it. | was just wondering if you did have anybody working on that sort of
thing.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not know if Members of this Committee will have seen the article that we did for The
Evening Standard within the last four weeks --

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): Some of us do not read The Evening Standard.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
do not believe that.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): | do not think many of us read it, though.
Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
What we did was an article which was explaining that we are going to set up a Cyber Crime Unit

with something of the order of 500 officers and staff. To be clear, that is probably aimed in
particular at economic crime but it is clear that other crime is happening on the internet - on

Page 50



which you have raised some aspects - where we are not equipped to deal with it. If we have this
type of crime, for a uniform officer to attend a home and to try to get the evidence trail through
a computer on the internet is just very difficult. If you have economic crime same challenge. |
think we had one case recently of 3,000 victims, about £3 million stolen - victims all over
London and outside London. A local detective sergeant (DS) is really going to struggle to get
the evidence chain and then do something about it. For that reason we are going to invest in a
Cyber Crime Unit, not with growth but with reallocating existing resources. When we get more
detail we can bring that back to the Committee. | do not think the majority of the resources will
be for what we are talking about, but there will have to be some of that considered and | am
sure it will grow over time.

Jenny Jones (Deputy Chair): As Caroline [Pidgeon] said, she will be leading on a piece of
work on this and | am sure we will include online abuse.

Victoria Borwick (AM): | thought you already had a Cyber Crime Unit because | remember
having a presentation on it before, but perhaps it has been changed in format. The question |
really want to talk about is on female genital mutilation (FGM), which is something that is of
interest to all of us around this table. You were just talking briefly about multi-agency working,
and of course that has been one of the most important points highlighted in here, and if we do
not all work together we are not going to tackle this. There is this mixture of the need for
education, the need for health professionals, and the need for police but not | think
criminalising people so that it goes so underground that everyone is too scared to raise the
issue. | think it is something that all of us here have had increasing knowledge of, regrettably.

Here we come up to a Christmas holiday when everybody wants everyone to be safe in the
bosom of their families and some people of course will be both maltreated here and also taken
abroad where these practices will be performed. Therefore, perhaps if you would just give us a
five minute update on what you are doing.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): In
terms, first of all, of the Cyber Crime Unit, you are quite right we do have one it is just very
small.

Victoria Borwick (AM): Yes, | seem to have had a presentation from you.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
think you are talking of the order of a few tens. We just need to expand it massively.
Therefore, there is some facility but it is reserved for the most complex of cases.

The second point, in terms of FGM, certainly something that | think is a big priority - one of |
know - because the main thing we talked about today is about underreporting. This is just
hugely underreported. | am afraid there are mixed views in some communities about whether it
is a crime, but the truth is that it is a crime. It is on the statute books. It is very clear.

Over the last couple of years we have had five cases in the pipeline where we thought we could
make progress. Four of them have fallen by the wayside. We have one that remains there, and

Page 51



the truth is in this country there has not been a single successful prosecution for this crime since
the legislation has existed. | think we all collectively need to get our act together. | am not only
talking about the police. | am talking about health. | am talking about education. There are
clearly cases where people must have been identified as victims, on medical examination alone,
and it has not been reported.

| do not know if Members of the Committee have seen, there was a very good documentary six
weeks” ago on Channel 4 by a woman called Leyla Hussein. For those who have not seen it |
would recommend it. It is only about 45 minutes but it is graphic in describing what it means,
and it is powerful in describing to people who thought they knew what it meant, and it causes a
reaction. | have now met Leyla because | was so impressed by the clarity of what she said. If |
just say that she made this documentary and she is trying to get more Government action, all of
us to do more and we are determined to do something. | have said to her that | am very selfish;
| just want to know who the cutters are. Of course there is a dilemma, for the child or the
woman involved; they have to complain generally about their parents. There is an inbuilt
problem. | am afraid that is what we found.

In a case that we have at the moment, which we think we have some success with, it was an
estranged father who arranged for it. The mother is still supporting the child, or the now
slightly older person, but we think we will be able to maintain this prosecution. That is for the
victim to have to make the complaint. If we can get to the cutters, of which there are

two types. There are those who are in foreign countries and this time of year, as you have said,
Victoria --

Victoria Borwick (AM): As | mentioned, yes.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): --
is a dangerous time. | did not realise but Leyla explained that Christmas is when people are
taken away.

Victoria Borwick (AM): This is the time they are taken away.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Mainly because they have some time to recover by the time they appear in the school. They are

less likely to notice.

There is some work we have done at the airports for the last couple of years trying to identify
children coming back from certain countries but it is fraught with difficulties.

Victoria Borwick (AM): It is too late then.
Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):

We are making almost a clinical observation on the behaviour of a child to seek an examination
for which we might one day be held to account.

Page 52



Victoria Borwick (AM): The problem here is it is not just as you say the sexual side of it; it is
the years of other problems and other health issues. This is something as you say that really
does need multi-agency working. We can all beseech you to do something but unless
everybody here is allowed to talk about the long-term health issues and what is actually
happening and what do you do? Just because you educate somebody, until you actually stop
somebody inflicting this on somebody it is not going to stop. You can stop people coming and
going in and out of airports but it may be too late. You are absolutely right, and | am very
pleased that you have given us that Christmas message.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service): |
am seeing Leyla again | think in the first couple of weeks of January because we are going to
see what we can do together about gathering intelligence and what will work.

| think one of the very practical things, if it is a political score, | would say that the great thing
about that documentary is it was so powerful and the best piece of evidence. | think there were
five young people - | do not know what their origin was - from a community. | think they were
aged between 16 and 22 who are being shown in graphic detail what this meant and were in
one case physically sick and in four cases just were clearly shocked..

That education is really valuable from that documentary but it went out at 10.45PM. | caught it
by accident. It needs to go out far earlier and to have a wider circulation - schools, mosques,
wherever - so that people are challenged about their attitudes. With that change of attitudes
we will get more support for investigation.

| am determined that we will do our best but, you are quite right, unless we get some cultural
change it will not change.

Victoria Borwick (AM): You certainly have the support of everybody around this table.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Just on that, certainly this
is picked up against the new Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy, but you are absolutely
right about the need for very meaningful prevention, if you like, real engagement with
communities. Certainly, MOPAC’s approach on this is to identify two boroughs where we can
really do some pioneering work around the issue around prevention and get those referral
networks to work earlier rather than too late. | think that is really something where there is
more work to be done, certainly. It is dealing with the criminal justice response is important, but
getting that prevention right is critical.

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Chair, could | just take one opportunity? This is a challenging meeting at times but it is also an
opportunity to just say very clearly. If there is any victim out there or anybody who knows who

are cutting girls, here or abroad, if they tell us we will do something about it, so tell us.

Victoria Borwick (AM): That is great.

Page 53



Jennette Arnold OBE (AM): | welcome all that Victoria [Borwick] said and | welcome her
work especially coming from health. | just have to say, as somebody who has been working in
this area for now nearly 30 years, this is an issue that peaks and gets people excited and
impassioned, and then it is like they tick a box and they go away. This is an endemic activity
that has been going on for thousands and thousands of years. | think you will find that the
Metropolitan Police Service over the years have led on this area in a really quite sustained way,
whereas other partners for them it is like they have to wait until after the event. | think that the
push now in terms of the police and that statement that the Commissioner has made, in terms
of the clarity that this is illegal. This is a child protection issue and in this country there is a zero
tolerance to it. | think that the police saying that and us knowing that that is the way forward is
really affirming.

Can | just add - and | think it is what Stephen said - that | think we can never move away from
the fact that unless we are organisations and agencies working with the community we will get
nowhere. We know this time and time again. What is interesting now is that this generation of
young people who are speaking out are the third generation born here, so they have an issue
about identifying, of being born in this country, of saying, “The laws of this country are my
laws”. | think we have to do everything we can to be supporting this sort of growth. Many of
them are young women who are speaking up and who want people to help them. They usually
want to save their younger sisters or their younger cousins because, sadly, when they do speak
up it is because they have had that experience. | welcome all the work that is being done and
thank you for that statement, Sir Bernard.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): | am just going to raise one final issue if | may. There has been a
press report - perhaps | will start with Stephen [Greenhalgh] - that the Mayor is seeking to hold
urgent talks with the Home Office about the Terrorism Prevention Investigation Measures
(TPIMs). We touched on this last month that ten are up for renewal in the New Year. | realise
that two of them are now on the run. The press report indicates that it was after a briefing from
senior Metropolitan Police Service officers that the Mayor was so concerned that he is seeking
this urgent meeting. Stephen, perhaps you could outline exactly what the Mayor’s great
concerns are.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): | do not think it is my job
to specifically speak for the Mayor on these occasions. Obviously the Mayor, as Mayor of
London, is worried about absconds when people are subject to a TPIM. He has regular briefings
with the leadership of the Metropolitan Police Service, in this case with AC Cressida Dick. | will
not comment specifically about what is said in those meetings either. That is a meeting that
necessarily has to remain confidential. Clearly, the important thing that the Mayor is trying to
do in every single case is to ensure whether there is an operational breakdown that results in an
abscond, or whether there is something wrong with the inherent powers that could potentially
minimise that risk. In this case he has had feedback. | am not aware, following that meeting,
that he is seeking an urgent meeting with the Home Office so | cannot comment upon it any
more than | know.

Page 54



Joanne McCartney (Chair): It has been reported that the Mayor believes that suspects
should be able to be relocated away from London, as the previous orders used to have good
results.

Stephen Greenhalgh (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime): Yes. He has some
concerns. We are talking about a very small number of people that are subject to these orders.

| think it is eight in total. | might be wrong but | think that is the figure | have got. There have
been a couple of absconds and he has certainly raised this issue. | have to say | have also
briefed the Mayor on my meeting with other police officers involved in counter-terrorism, and it
is all about an assessment of where you put your resources in dealing with risk. At the moment |
would not say this is a crisis talk. | am not aware that there is any emergency, and all the Mayor
is seeking to do at this moment is ensure that he is properly briefed on these matters.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Commissioner, from the Metropolitan Police Service’s
perspective, has the Metropolitan Police Service made representations to the Home Office
about the future of TPIMs or what should happen?

Sir Bernard Hogan-Howe (Police Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service):
Not at all, no. | am afraid | am not briefed. | picked up that the Mayor might have made some

comment but | am afraid | am not briefed on his particular concerns.

Joanne McCartney (Chair): Are there any further questions from Members? No. Thank you
all for coming in and, on behalf of the Committee | wish you all a Merry Christmas.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda Item 4

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Question and Answer Session with the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the
Metropolitan Police Service

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 30 January 2013

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

Summary

This report serves as a background paper to the question and answer session with the Deputy Mayor
for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service.

Recommendations

That the Committee notes, as background to the question and answer session with the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Commissioner of the Metropolitan
Police, the monthly report from Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime attached at
Appendix 1; and

That the Committee notes the answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime
and the Deputy Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police to the questions asked by
Members.

Background

The Committee has agreed that it will hold a monthly question and answer session with the head of
the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and invite representation from the Metropolitan Police
Service.

MOPAC produces a monthly report providing an update on policing operational and financial
performance, as well as the activities and decisions of the MOPAC. The report is used to inform
questions to MOPAC and the Met at monthly question and answer sessions. The report for January
is attached at Appendix 1.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 57




4.1

43

4.4

4.5

5.1

6.1

Issues for Consideration

The Committee will explore topical issues of importance to policing and crime in London. Discussion
at this meeting is likely to include:

* The inquest into the shooting of Mark Duggan;
e \Water cannon; and

* Modern Slavery Bill

The inquest into the shooting of Mark Duggan
The Committee will question the Met on the lessons learned following the inquest into the shooting
of Mark Duggan, which concluded that he had been lawfully killed.

Water cannon
The Committee will investigate the Mayor’s plans to make funding available to the Met to purchase
water cannon for use by the summer.

Modern Slavery Bill

The Government is introducing a Modern Slavery Bill in the spring to strengthen existing legislation
around human trafficking. The Committee will investigate the implications of the draft Bill for the
Met, in terms of resources and training, and how it will work with the new National Crime Agency.
The Committee will also explore the role of MOPAC in working with partners across the criminal
justice system to enforce the new legislation.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 — MOPAC Monthly report for January 2014

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: There are none.

Contact Officer: ~ Matt Bailey, Assistant Scrutiny Manager
Telephone: 0207983 4014

E-mail:

Matt.Bailey@london.gov.uk

Page 58




APPENDIX 1

M O P A C MAYOR OF LONDON

Monthly Report to the

Police and Crime Committee

Thursday 30 January 2014
10am
City Hall

Stephen Greenhalgh
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime

Page 59



1.

INTRODUCTION

This report is provided to the Police and Crime Committee (PCC) for its 30 January 2014 meeting
to assist the Committee to exercise its function in supporting the Mayor’s Office for Policing And
Crime (MOPACQ) and to hold it to account.

This report covers the period 7 December to 17 January 2014

2. MOPAC ACTIVITY REPORT

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Counter terrorism

On 12 December, | had an operational briefing with the Mayor on the latest
developments in the threat from terrorism. This was followed by a meeting on on 17
December by discussions of Counter Terrorism police performance ahead of the Police
Counter-Terrorism Board, which was chaired by the Home Office on which I sit. This forms
part of my oversight framework for counter-terrorism. | have also met with the Security
Minister.

MOPAC Challenge

On 12 December 2013, | chaired a MOPAC Challenge Panel which focussed on Foreign
National Offending. There has been significant coverage of foreign national offenders in
the press recently, linked in part to the removal of transitional controls on Bulgaria and
Romania on January 1* 2014. London is an extremely diverse city that welcomes foreign
nationals and recognises the contribution they make to the city. However, it is inevitable,
that as a global/capital city, a minority of the people it attracts are here for the wrong
reasons or will break the law whilst living in the city. The Challenge Panel focussed on
understanding how the MPS and its partners address this issue.

The Panel heard from the Home Office Immigration and Enforcement Directorate and the
MPS, on some excellent examples of joint working across agencies as well as the approach
the MPS was taking to deliver its objective to be as effective in dealing with criminals
from overseas as we are with those from the UK.

London Citizens meeting
On 16 December | attended a London Citizens meeting with the Mayor. On the Agenda
was CitySafe, a project which provides safe havens for young people and supports
reporting to police. London Citizens acknowledged MOPAC's effort to promote CitySafe
to the business community.

London Crime Reduction Board

On 16 December | chaired the London Crime Reduction Board (LCRB) meeting on behalf
of the Mayor, which focused on two main areas, Transforming Rehabilitation (TR)
programme and performance on the MOPAC 20:20:20 targets. MOPAC and its fellow
LCRB members are in discussion with the Ministry of Justice, making the case for a
London specific approach to TR.

On the 20:20:20 targets, in the rolling year to October 2013, there has been an

encouraging drop of 11% in the 7 neighbourhood crime types against the 2011/12
baseline.

Page 60



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Meeting with Tom Winsor, HMIC
On 18 December, | had a meeting with Tom Winsor, Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of
Constabulary (HMIQ), to discuss the ongoing review on undercover policing.

We also discussed crime recording and Police IT.

MET Crime Register

On 6 January, as part of my regular schedule of meetings with key officers and staff
within the MPS, | met with the Force’s Crime Registrar. We discussed a range of issues
relating to his work, including the ongoing Public Administration Select Committee
(PASQ) inquiry into Crime Recording.

Meeting with Justice Secretary

On 8 January, the Mayor and | met with the Justice Secretary, Chris Grayling, to discuss a
number of issues. Most notably, the need for increased funding for victims in London.
MOPAC, GLA, cross-party London MPs and Borough Leaders have been lobbying for
funding to reflect the demand in London.

Wildlife crime event

On 13 January, a Wildlife Crime event was held in conjunction with World Society for the
Protection of Animals (WSPA) and MOPAC to deliver London’s first multi-agency
enforcement seminar aimed at tackling wildlife crime in the capital. This landmark seminar
will help forge new partnerships and collaborative responses to tackling Wildlife Crime
across the capital.

Town Hall meetings

A programme of Town Hall meetings is underway where AC Simon Byrne and |, along with
the local commander, are updating communities on the progress being made in delivering
the Police and Crime Plan and looking at how the Local Policing Model is being
implemented locally.

Those Borough’s in the first tranche of the Local Policing Model roll-out will be visited in
the first round of meetings and the remaining boroughs will be visited later in the year.
This allows the early roll out boroughs to feed their experiences into our post-
implementation review of tranche one, which is being conducted during the spring of
2014.

The first Town Hall meeting was held in Merton on Tuesday 14 January and was well
attended, with approximately 45-50 members of the public present. There were a good
range of questions and a useful discussion around Police response to specific crime types,
including burglary and cycling offences and the ongoing good performance across
MOPAC?7.

Page 61



3. PERFORMANCE
3.1 Data

Police data is now fully updated on the London datastore. In addition, more police and crime data
and information can be found at http://www.london.gov.uk/priorities/policing-and-crime/data-

info.

An overview of key crime types as are below. Where performance is not going in the right
direction, | will be addressing this through the quarterly performance MOPAC Challenge.

Percentage

Crime Type Jan - Dec 2012 | Jan - Dec 2013 Chanae
TNO 793,149 723,315
MOPAC Priority Offences

Violence with Injury 58,910 56,661
Robbery 36,275 30,007
Burglary 93,846 87,610
Theft from the Person 48,076 46,176
Theft of motor vehicle 22,692 20,614
Theft from motor vehicle 69,416 65,831
Vandalism (Criminal Damage) 62,845 56,734
Rape Sanction Detections

Rape SDs (absolute number) 646

Other Crime

Property Portfolio 530,638 483,156
Personal Robbery 33,802 27,968
Residential Burglary 61,822 56,572
B?fn;ﬁz’g; Violence “Violence with Injury’ 18,221 19,204
Knife Crime 12,051 10,305
Gun Crime 1,986 1,706
Traffic

Killed and Seriously Injured on the roads (RY to 2884 2 607

Jun)

Page 62



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

4 SUMMARY REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT
Period 8 - 2013/14

Summary

This report on the MOPAC/MPS finances for 2013/14 provides details of the Period 8 position for
revenue and capital budgets.

The key points are:

* The revenue year to date position is that savings of £19.5m have been achieved. The full year
forecast position is to provide savings of £12.7m.

* Savings on pay budgets are offsetting pressures on overtime and running costs. This is a
potential issue as two key areas of savings are not being delivered.

» (apital Programme: Year to date expenditure is £96.2m, which is 54.1% of the revised budget
of £177.8m.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Overall Financial Position - Period 8

At the end of November there are savings of £19.5m against the year to date budget.
Expenditure is forecast to be broadly in line with total budget for the remainder of the year and

the forecast is to provide savings of £12.7m in 2013/14. Table 1 provides the Period 8 position
for subjective budgets for the MPS and MOPAC.

Page 63



Table 1 - Subjective comparison of Year To Date and forecast annual expenditure /

MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

income to budget (Period 8)

Period 8
Period 8 | Period 8 | Period 8 | 2013/14 | Period 8 | Annual
YTD YTD YTD Annual Annual | Forecast
Budget Actual | Variance | Budget | Forecast | Variance
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Police Officer Pay 1,162.5 1,157.1 -5.4 1,747 .8 1,735.4 -12.4
Police Staff Pay 3749 370.8 -4.0 562.9 554.9 -8.0
PCSO Pay 63.7 60.7 -3.0 94.0 86.7 -7.3
Total Pay 1,601.1 1,588.6 -12.4 2,404.7 2,377.0 -27.7
Police Officer Overtime 58.7 61.9 3.2 89.7 95.1 5.4
Police Staff Overtime 16.3 15.8 -0.6 24.7 24.1 -0.5
PCSO Overtime 03 0.2 -0.1 0.5 0.4 -0.1
Total Overtime 75.3 77.9 2.6 114.9 119.7 4.7
Employee Related
Expenditure 13.4 11.5 -1.9 20.5 19.9 -0.7
Premises Costs 135.2 140.7 55 190.5 199.0 85
Transport Costs 41.1 39.2 -1.9 63.1 61.4 -1.7
Supplies & Services 239.2 224.9 -14.3 399.4 403.1 3.7
Total Running
Expenses 428.8 416.3 -12.5 673.5 683.4 9.9
Capital Financing Costs 35.7 33.9 -1.8 53.6 53.6 0.0
Discretionary Pension
Costs 253 24.0 -1.4 38.0 36.6 -1.4
Total Gross
Expenditure 2,166.2 | 2,140.7 -25.5 3,284.7 3,270.2 -14.5
Income -181.9 -184.5 -2.6 -275.4 -274.2 1.2
Specific Grants -350.2 -341.0 9.2 -509.2 -508.4 0.8
Transfers to/from
Earmarked Reserves -1.1 -1.7 -0.6 26.2 26.0 -0.2
Total Net Expenditure 1,633.1 1,613.5 -19.5 2,526.3 2,513.6 -12.7
Funding (General Grant &
Precept) -1,701.3 | -1,701.3 0.0 -2,526.3 -2,526.3 0.0
Overall Total -68.2 -87.7 -19.5 0.0 -12.7 -12.7

The year-to-date position at Period 8 shows accelerated savings of £19.5m, and the forecast is

to provide savings of £12.7m. Further details are provided at paragraphs below.

Page 64




MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Period 8 Commentary

Police Pay
Police Officer numbers are below that anticipated within the police pay budget and as a result

the year-to-date Police Officer Pay position shows projected full year savings of £12.4m. This is
partly offset by costs of unsociable hours payments being currently £1.4m higher than
budgeted and expected to be £2.1m over the estimated costs by the end of the year. The latest
workforce projections indicate that the MPS is likely to reach an overall strength of
approximately 30,900 FTE by March 2014, which is 300 FTE below the budgeted number, with
the position being recovered in the first quarter of 2014/15. The financial impact of estimated
officer numbers” means the small pressure from unsocial hour payments can be met from the
overall police pay budget and still deliver savings of £12.4m (0.7% of budget) this year.

Police Staff Pay

Our strategy to reduce police staff numbers where possible continues to deliver ahead of
schedule. Police staff numbers have fallen from 13,467 in March 2012 to 12,368 at 30
November 2013, a reduction of 8.2%. We are forecasting a police staff strength at the end of
2013/14 of 12,200 - a reduction of 9.4% over two years. The impact of this upon the budget is
that savings of £4m have been delivered at the end of November and the forecast is to provide
savings of £8m (1.4% of budget) by financial year end.

PCSO Pay
PCSO strength is currently 2,243, significantly below the planned profile of 2,457. This is due to

natural turnover and current PCSOs being successful in their applications to train as police
constables. The PCSO strength forecast is therefore reliant on continued recruitment from
PCSOs to Police Constables. PCSO pay is forecast to provide savings of £7.3m (7.8% of budget)
this financial year.

Overtime

The forecast position for Police Officer Overtime is a cost pressure of £5.4m (6% of budget).
Table 2 below shows the major operations which are driving the forecast pressure. The budget
has been increased to reflect the agreed CT funding for Operation Malham, and additional
funding requested from the Home Office for Operation True Blue and the G8 conference.

Page 65



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Table 2 - Period 8 Police Officer Overtime Position

Pressure on
MPS
Cost to Full year overtime
date forecast Funding budget
Operation / Activity £M £M £M £M
Malham/Pegboard’ 5.3 5.3 2.0 33
True Blue? 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0
Kudos® 0.3 0.6 0.0 0.6
G8 Conference® 1.6 1.6 1.6 0.0
Protection of Royal Mews* 0.3 0.6 0.0 0.6
Total cost 8.5 9.1 4.6 4.5
Core Activities 41.0 86.0 85.1 0.9
Total Overtime 49.5 95.1 89.7 5.4

(Table 2 is based on the latest available information and will be updated monthly).

Notes:

1. £2m of Operation Malham/Pegboard cost to be funded by CT Grant.

2. Claims for reimbursement of True Blue and G8 submitted to Home Office.

3. The rate of overtime spend for Operation Kudos has reduced in recent months, hence the
reduction in forecast, and the position is being kept under review.

4. MPS is awaiting confirmation from the Home Office as to whether costs for protection of
Royal Mews will be funded by a grant uplift.

The table indicates there will be a cost pressure of £5.4m on police overtime at the end of the
financial year. £4.5m is due to major operations and £0.9m in relation to all other police
overtime expenditure.

Total MPS expenditure is expected to be within total budget this financial year so this forecast
pressure is effectively being funded by anticipated savings on pay lines.

Running Expenses

The year to date position for Running Expenses shows an under-spend of £12.5m. This is
primarily due to profiling of budgets, particularly Supplies and Services relating to IT
procurement and covert activities, where despite a year to date under-spend, the budgets are
expected to be fully spent by year end. This under-spend is partially offset by a year to date
over-spend of £5.5m on Premises Costs, due mainly to the delay to Corporate Real Estate (CRE)
savings.

The full year forecast is a cost pressure of £9.9m. This is mainly due to a £8.5m overspend on
Premises Costs, relating to the delay to CRE savings and an increased forecast for facilities
management costs.

The Supplies and Services forecast figure suggests that there will be a higher level of
expenditure in the second half of the year than in the first half. A detailed analysis of forecast
running costs expenditure in the final months of the year will be provided as part of the Period
9 report.

Page 66



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Capital Financing Costs and Discretionary Pensions

The year to date saving of £1.8m on Capital Financing Costs is due to reduced activity on
capital expenditure, and also due to lower than expected interest charges. The full year forecast
is for expenditure to match budget at present although additional capital receipts will impact
upon the need to borrow and there are likely to be savings in this area at year end.

Income & Specific Grants

There is a year to date under-recovery of Specific Grants of £9.2m. This is primarily in Specialist
Operations, and is offset by reduced expenditure on Counter Terrorism activities. This under-
recovery will be managed to ensure that the full grant is claimed by the end of the financial
year.

The full year forecast for Income is an under-achievement of £1.2m (0.4% of budget). This is
principally due to a reduction in match funding due to unfilled posts, partially offset by
additional income from vehicle seizures.

Capital Monitoring Report - Period 8 of 2013/14 (End of November 2013)

Capital as at PO8 November 2013 Programme
Time elapsed = 67% Performance
Revised Forecast Variance -
Summary by Budget Actuals to forecast v
Provisioning Dept 2013/14 31/03/14 programme
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Budget 177,767 96,161 150,285 -27,482
% of
forecast
Comprising spent
Directorate of 77,630 26,176 81,022 323
Information
:3Cizsadj for Optimism 0 0 -27.000 00
Property Services 81,833 58,622 77,846 753
Transport Services 17,736 11,082 17,855 62.1
Other 569 281 562 50.0

The programme forecast out-turn has decreased in the month from £181.4m to £150.3m. This
decrease is largely due to a re-evaluation of forecast expenditure by the Directorate of
Information. It has been recognised that a number of projects in support of the new ICT
Strategy have still to receive approval. It is not considered likely that all will start this financial
year. Therefore an overall reduction of £27m has been agreed. Senior management are
presently giving detailed consideration to those schemes which will proceed and a more
accurate assessment across individual projects will be available by the end of Period 9 of
2013/14.

Page 67



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Capital Receipts

The original budget for capital receipts is £40M, to date receipts of £29.3m have been received.
5. Percentage of correspondence MOPAC responded to within 20 working days
MOPAC has been developing its capacity in Private office following the restructure in order to

be able to manage and prioritise the correspondence and Mayor’s questions received.

Mayor’s Questions (MQs) received

Mayor’s Total On time Percentage on
Questions time
Apr-13

May-13 101 76 75%
Jun-13 120 59 49%
Jul-13 129 102 79%
Aug-13

Sep-13 100 76 76%
Oct -13 85 73 86%
Nov - 13 117 96 82%
Dec -13 130 96 73%
100%

90%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%
Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13

Page 68



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Correspondence received and responded to within 20 days

No.
Correspondence responded % responded to
Months PO to within 20 [ within 20 working
received .
working days
days
Apr-13 173 147 85%
May-13 139 130 93.5%
Jun-13 113 95 84.1%
Jul-13 144 115 79.9%
Aug-13 186 140 75.3%
Sep-13 117 105 89.7%
Oct -13 191 159 83%
Nov -13 194 165 85%
Dec -13 181 161 89%
100%
90% 89%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

In December, we responded to 89% of correspondence received within the 20 day target.

Response rates are intrinsically linked to increases in volumes of correspondence received.

Our response rate dropped in August to 75% was back up to 90% in September but dipped to 83%
in October due to the volume received in the month. December was a better month as we
responded to 89%. Resources are being dedicated to the Private Office to ensure correspondence
is responded to within agreed timeframes.

Page 69



MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

6. MOPAC BUSINESS AND MEETINGS

In the last month | have had a range of meetings with key stakeholders, MPS officers, and in
support of the Mayor.

6.1  Regular meetings

* Meetings with the Mayor.

* Bilateral with the Commissioner

* Meetings with MPS Management Board team members

* Meetings with MOPAC Senior Officers and Advisers

* Liaison meetings with Police and Crime Committee members.

* Meetings on Met Change and the Budget with the Deputy Commissioner and MPS
Management Board

* Regular contact with the Home Office

There are also frequent informal conversations with senior colleagues

Date Meeting/event

9 Dec Meeting: Monthly catch up with Commissioner

10 Dec Meeting: Margaret Hodge MP

10 Dec Catch up: Officers from Youth Justice Board,
Ministry of Justice

11 Dec Event: Victim Support Official Opening of
the South West London Divisional
Office

12 Dec Meeting: MOPAC Challenge Board

12 Dec Meeting: Joint Asset Management Panel
Meeting

12 Dec Meeting: Bilateral with Cressida Dick & Mayor

13 Dec Meeting: Monthly Catch up with AC Rowley

16 Dec Meeting: London Crime Reduction Board
Meeting

16 Dec Roundtable with London Citizens

16 Dec Meeting: Bilateral meeting with Sir Bernard
Hogan Howe & Mayor

17 Dec Event: Commemorative Service: 30th
Anniversary of Harrods Bombing

17 Dec Meeting: Police CT Board

18 Dec Meeting: Tom Winsor, HMIC

19 Dec Meeting: Police and Crime Committee

20 Dec Meeting: Nick Alston, PCC Essex

06 Jan Meeting: Bilateral meeting with Sir Bernard
Hogan Howe & Mayor

07 Jan Meeting: Budget and Performance Committee
Meeting

08 Jan Meeting: Oral evidence to the Public As part of the

Page 70




MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Date Meeting/event
Administration Select Committee Committee's inquiry
into crime statistics.
08 Jan Meeting: Mayor & Chris Grayling
08 Jan Visit: Greenwich Volunteer Police Cadets
10 Jan Visit: Borough Visit to Merton, Wimbledon
14 Jan Meeting: Merton Town Hall Public
Meetings/Roadshow,
15 Jan Meeting: Joint Investment Board
16 Jan Catch up James Brokenshire MP
16 Jan Event: London Government Dinner
17 Jan Visit: Visit to HMP Thameside, Hampshire

6.2 Decisions

The following formal decisions have been made

Decision Number

Formal Decisions made

DMPCD 2013 121

Property Disposal Marylebone Station

DMPCD 2013 148

No Cost Provision of Software and Consultancy

DMPCD 2013 166

Business Case Implementation of Digital Interviewing

DMPCD 2013 177

Business Case CARM Upgrade

DMPCD 2013 178

Business Case Custody Suite Imaging

DMPCD 2013 179

Business Case Storage Infrastructure Obsolescence

DMPCD 2013 180

Business Case Call Recording Archive Obsolescence

DMPCD 2013 182

Procurement Requests December 2013

DMPCD 2013 183

Release of Funding Command and Control Futures

DMPCD 2013 185

Riot Damages Act Claim Appeal

DMPCD 2013 186

Contract for Oracle Database Support Services

DMPCD 2013 187

Financial Assistance for Legal Representation

DMPCD 2013 188

Settlement of Claim

DMPCD 2013 190

Property Disposals December 2013

DMPCD 2013 191

Single Tender Action Curtis Green

DMPCD 2013 192

Curtis Green Capital Funding and Contract Award

DMPCD 2013 193

Hendon Disposal December 2013

DMPCD 2013 194

Alcohol Sobriety Pilot

Page 71




MOPAC Report to Police and Crime Committee — 30 January 2014

Decision Number

Formal Decisions made

DMPCD 2013 195

Single Tender Action Phonographic Performance Ltd Licence

DMPCD 2013 196

Anti-Gangs Strategy Refresh and Gangs Summit

DMPCD 2013 197

Major Buildings Estate Strategy Update

DMPCD 2013 198

Review of Services for Victims of Crime in London

DMPCD 2013 199

Request Agreement to Pay Legal Costs

DMPCD 2014 01

Grant Agreement from the Home Office

6.3 Forthcoming MOPAC Meetings

Date MOPAC Meeting

12 Feb 2014 Joint Investment Board

13 Feb 2014 MOPAC Challenge — Hate Crime
19 Feb 2014 Joint Asset Management Panel

Page 72




Agenda Item 5

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Safeguarding

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 30 January 2014

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Summary

This report provides background information for the establishment of the Police and Crime
Committee’s Safeguarding Working Group. This Group will gather evidence on behalf of the London
Assembly Police and Crime Committee for use in its investigation into safeguarding.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees to establish an investigation into Safeguarding, as set out in
the attached scoping report, and establish a Working Group to gather evidence on behalf
of the Committee, as set out in paragraph 4.3.

That the Committee agrees the Membership and a Chair of the Safeguarding Working
Group.

That the Committee agrees to convene meetings of the Working Group on 13 February
and 13 March 2014, in place of the scheduled full Police and Crime Committee meetings
on those dates.

Background

Safeguarding children is everyone’s responsibility. As defined by the Department for Education, it
includes: protecting children from maltreatment; preventing impairment of children’s health or
development; ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe
and effective care; and taking action to enable children to have the best outcomes.’

Children are best protected when professionals are clear about what is required of them individually
and how they need to work together. The police have an essential role to play in the identification
and protection of children at risk and have a responsibility to share information with other agencies.
Section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004 states that each police authority (now the Mayor’s Office for
Policing and Crime in London — MOPAC) and chief police officer of each police force must make
sure that they protect and promote the welfare of children.

MOPAC has a legal responsibility to hold the Met to account for duties in relation to safequarding
children. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 states: ‘The police and crime

' Department for Education (March 2013) Working together to safequard children

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 73




4.1

4.2

43

4.4

5.1

commissioner must, in particular, hold the chief constable to account for the exercise of duties in
relation to the safeguarding of children and the promotion of child welfare that are imposed on the
chief constable by sections 10 and 11 of the Children Act 2004.

Issues for Consideration

It is proposed that the Police and Crime Committee undertake an investigation to examine the Met’s
approach to safequarding following high profile cases and reviews, such as The Munro Review of
Child Protection (2011).2 It will examine the structural changes that have taken place in the Met,
including the establishment of the Sexual Offences, Exploitation and Child Abuse command (SOECA)
in June 2013, and assess the early findings from the roll out of MASH (multi-agency safeqguarding
hubs) in London. The investigation will also look at specific examples of abuse such as female
genital mutilation (FGM), domestic violence and child sexual exploitation. A full scoping document
for the investigation is attached to this report as appendix 1.

The investigation’s proposed terms of reference are:

* To examine the Met’s approach to safequarding and how they engage with key partners.
* To assess the level of Met resources available to tackle child abuse.
* To evaluate MOPAC's strategic oversight.

*  To establish what more the Met and MOPAC could do to ensure their approach fully supports
children at risk and reflects best practice.

Working Group

It is proposed that the Committee should establish a Safequarding Working Group to gather
evidence on its behalf. The Safequarding Working Group would report its findings to the Police and
Crime Committee which may then make recommendations to the Mayor’s Office for Policing and
Crime and/or the Met. The PCC can establish working groups (non-decision making bodies) by using
its subsidiary powers under section 34(1) of the GLA Act 1999, as applied to the PCC by virtue of
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. And, accordingly, standing order 9.1H allows
the PCC to 'appoint informal groups of its members...to make recommendations back to the
Committee’

The term of reference for the Safeguarding Working Group would be as follows:
* To gather evidence on behalf of the Police and Crime Committee in relation to the Met’s

approach to safeqguarding children in London and report back to the Committee which may then
make recommendations on this issue.

Legal Implications

The Police and Crime Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

2 police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011

3 Department of Education (2011) The Munro Review of Child Protection

Page 74



6.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: There are none.

Contact Officer: Janette Roker, Scrutiny Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 6562
E-mail: janette.roker@london.gov.uk

Page 75




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



/] abed

LONDONASSEMBLY
Safeguarding

Police and Crime Committee

Introduction

Safeguarding children is everyone’s responsibility. As defined
by the Department for Education, it includes: protecting
children from maltreatment; preventing impairment of
children’s health or development; ensuring that children grow
up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and
effective care; and taking action to enable children to have the
best outcomes.’

The Met identifies child abuse as all situations of ill treatment
of children, including physical and emotional abuse, infanticide
and child homicide. It investigates all such offences through
the Sexual Offences, Exploitation and Child Abuse command
(SOECA). In 2012/13 the Met received 18,576 allegations and
investigated 8,814 crimes (compared with 12,759 allegations
and 8,577 crimes investigated in 2008/09).°

Purpose of the investigation

The Police and Crime Committee has agreed to investigate in
detail the Met’s approach to safeguarding following high
profile cases and reviews, such as The Munro Review of Child
Protection (2011).% It will examine the structural changes that
have taken place in the Met, including the establishment of
SOECA in June 2013, and assess the early findings from the

1

roll out of MASH (multi-agency safeguarding hubs) in London.

The investigation will also look at specific examples of abuse
such as female genital mutilation (FGM), domestic violence
and child sexual exploitation. The Committee intends to
provide an independent assessment of how well the Met’s
approach is working and highlight any areas where
improvements need to be made.

The Met has undergone a number of changes since 2008 and
this investigation will look at whether there is enough resource
dedicated to safequarding in London.

The investigation’s terms of reference are:

* To examine the Met’s approach to safeguarding and
how they engage with key partners.

¢ To assess the level of Met resources available to tackle
child abuse.

* To evaluate MOPAC's strategic oversight.

* To establish what more the Met and MOPAC could do
to ensure their approach fully supports children at risk
and reflects best practice.

Further information

About the Committee




8/ abed

LONDONASSEMBLY
Safeguarding

Police and Crime Committee

Background
The duty of the police

Children are best protected when professionals are clear about
what is required of them individually and how they need to
work together. Working Together to Safequard Children’
outlines the legislative requirements and expectations on
individual services to safeguard and promote the welfare of
children. It sets a clear framework for Local Safeqguarding
Children Boards (LSCBs) to monitor the effectiveness of local
services and states that ‘the police and crime commissioner
must hold the chief constable to account for the exercise of
the latter’s duties in relation to safeguarding under sections 10
and 11 of the Children Act 2004.” The guidance recognises
that the police are ‘well placed to identify early when a child’s
welfare is at risk” and that they have a responsibility to share
information with other agencies where it is necessary to
protect children.

The crucial role the police play in the identification and
protection of children at risk has been highlighted in high
profile reviews such as Lord Laming’s report on child
protection (2009)° and the Munro Review of Child Protection
(2011)7

Lord Laming’s report questioned the ‘adequacy of the
resources devoted to police child protection teams, the
specialist training of these staff, the vacancy rates, the status
of this work and the quality of service provided.” It
recommended reqular review of all points of referral where
there is concern about a child’s safety and that the police
should be fully engaged in group meetings, reviews and
casework decisions and understand the referral process.

Further information

About the Committee

The Munro Review commended the Met’s Child Risk
Assessment Matrix (CRAM) and suggested the establishment
of MASH. It recommended that police are fully engaged in the
safeguarding inspection framework and that the framework
fully examines the contribution of the police on the frontline.
The review also recommended that the statutory requirement
for Local Safequarding Children Board’s to produce and publish
an annual report for the Children’s Trust Board is transferred to
the local Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chair of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

MASH

The inability of safequarding partners to share information
effectively has been highlighted in many public enquires and
serious case reviews. MASH is a pan-London programme to
improve the way that local safequarding partnerships deal with
child protection referrals. MASH brings together a range of



6/ abed

LONDONASSEMBLY
Safeguarding

Police and Crime Committee

partners into a single multi-agency safequarding hub to share * How are the Met performing — what is the sanction
information quickly and efficiently. Harrow and Haringey were detection rate and headline performance across
the first boroughs to establish a MASH and every borough in London?

London is expected to implement MASH by the end of the .

2013/14 year. Working together:

* How effective is the Met in working with key agencies
to safeguard and promote the welfare of children?

How the Committee will conduct the

investigation * What are the early findings from the roll out of MASH

in London?

About the Committee

Key questions the Committee will seek to answer
* How effective is learning across London from borough

PI’OgI’ESS and structure: serious case reviews?

* What changes have the Met made on safeguarding The role of the Mayor and MOPAC:

following recent high profile cases and reviews?
* How does MOPAC hold the Met to account on
¢ How have the recommendations from these reviews safeguarding?

been implemented?
* How is MOPAC taking forward the work of the

* How has the establishment of SOECA improved the Metropolitan Police Authority on safeguarding and
Met’s response to safeguarding? child protection?
Performance:  What is MOPAC doing to ensure that there is a
* How have allegations and reported crimes changed coordinated multi-agency response to tackling child
over the past five years? What are the reasons for the abuse in London?
changes



08 abed

LONDONASSEMBLY
Safeguarding

Police and Crime Committee

Public meetings

The Committee will invite a range of witnesses to examine and
assess safeguarding issues in London and the progress made
by the Met in addressing these. Witnesses are likely to include:

e Metropolitan Police

*  Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime

*  Office of the Children’s Commissioner

e Children’s charities

*  London Safequarding Children Board

*  Local Safequarding Children Board representatives

*  Representatives from projects working to safequard
children

* NHS England, London region safequarding lead
*  Department for Education
Call for evidence

The Committee will also issue a targeted call for written
evidence.

Statistical analysis

The Committee will make use of publically available Met data
to analyse the prevalence of child abuse and child sexual
exploitation in London. It will also analyse available data on the
Met’s safeguarding resources, including staffing and funding.

Site visit
The Committee will seek an opportunity for a site visit to

understand how the Met engages with local agencies and
contributes to safequarding across London.

Literature review

The Committee will review existing research on safeguarding.
This will include consideration of the recommendations made
in high profile reports such as: the Laming review of child
protection (2009); The Munro Review of Child Protection
(2011); and the Office of the Children’s Commissioner’s Inquiry
into Child Sexual Exploitation in Gangs and Groups (2013). It
will look at the Met’s strategies and operating procedures on
safeqguarding (for example, the Pan-London CSE Operating
Protocol) and will draw upon the research by the University of
Greenwich assessing the early impact of MASH in London. The
Committee will also make use of the work produced by the
London Safeguarding Children Board.

urther intormation

About the Committee




T8 abed

LONDONASSEMBLY
Safeguarding

Police and Crime Committee

Further information

Please contact janette.roker@london.gov.uk for further
information.

About the Committee

The Police and Crime Committee examines the work of the
Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) and reviews
the Police and Crime Plan for London. The Committee can also
investigate anything which it considers to be of importance to
policing and crime reduction in Greater London and make
recommendations for improvements.

For further information about the Committee and its work go
to http://www.london.gov.uk/who-runs-london/assembly

End notes

! Department for Education (March 2013) Working together to safeguard
children

2 For a more detailed breakdown see MQ 51/2013 (page 21)
3 Department of Education (2011) The Munro Review of Child Protection

* Department for Education (March 2013) Working together to safeguard
children

About the Committee

> Section 11 of the Children Act 2004 places a duty on the police, including
police and crime commissioners and MOPAC in London, to ensure that they
have regard to the need to safeqguard and promote the welfare of children.
In addition, the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires
the Mayor to hold the Met to account in relation to safeguarding children
(as detailed in the Children Act 2004).

® Lord Laming (2009) The Protection of Children in England: A progress
Report

’ Department of Education (2011) The Munro Review of Child Protection




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda Item 6
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Work Programme for the Police and
Crime Committee

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 30 January 2014

This report will be considered in public

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out a proposed work programme for the Police and Crime Committee.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes its work programme as set out at paragraph 4.2 of this
report.

3. Background

3.1 The Committee’s work programme is intended to enable the Committee to effectively fulfil its
roles of holding the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to account and investigating
issues of importance to policing and crime reduction in London. The Committee’s work involves a
range of activities, including formal meetings with MOPAC, the Metropolitan Police Service (the
Met) and other stakeholders, site visits, written consultations and roundtable meetings.

3.2  The Committee will usually meet twice a month. One of the monthly meetings is usually used to
hold a question and answer session with the Deputy Mayor of Policing and Crime. The
Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis has been invited to these meetings. The Committee
will primarily use Q&A meetings to investigate topical issues and review Met performance,
including consideration of MOPAC’s approach to holding the Met to account.

3.3  The Committee’s other monthly meeting is used to consider a particular topic or aspect of
policing and crime in greater detail. These investigations will be conducted either by the full
Committee or working groups. Working groups will have delegated authority to prepare reports
on the Committee’s behalf in consultation with group leads. Final reports will be approved and
published by the full Committee. Where possible, working groups will make use of the dates
scheduled for the Committee’s ‘thematic’ meetings.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 83




4.1

4.2

43

4.4

5.1

6.

6.1

Issues for Consideration

At its meeting on 10 October 2013, the Committee published a monitoring report that provided
an update on the progress against the Mayor’s policing and crime objectives as set out in his
Police and Crime Plan 2013-2016, as well as performance in a range of other areas of importance
to Londoners. It was agreed that this report will be produced on a bi-annual basis: once following
the end of the financial year, and again mid-way through the year. The most current monitoring
information can be found here.

The work programme has been designed to proactively examine issues of interest but also allows
for flexibility to respond to topical issues and for the Committee to react to MOPAC’s work
programme. Topics will be added to the timetable for Q&A meetings as they arise.

Month Thematic meetings Q&A meetings
February 4 February: Additional meeting - water cannon
13 February: 27 February
Child safeguarding
March 13 March: 27 March
Child safeguarding

On 6 January 2014, the Mayor wrote to the Home Secretary to notify her of his intention to
provide funds for the Met to purchase water cannon. Subject to consultation, he will then seek a
license from the Home Secretary for its use. The Committee has agreed to investigate this issue
and as such at its meeting on 16 January agreed to call an additional meeting to discuss the
proposal with external witnesses. This meeting will take place on 4 February.

The Committee’s next investigation, beginning in February, will review the impact of the changes
the Met has put in place to improve child protection and safequarding following high profile
abuse cases.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report: There are none.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: There are none

Contact Officer: Claire Hamilton, Scrutiny Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 5845

E-mail:

claire.hamilton@london.gov.uk

Page 84




Agenda Item 7
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Summary List of Actions

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 30 January 2014

This report will be considered in public

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out for noting actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee and its
Working Groups and correspondence entered into by the Chair on behalf of the Committee in
accordance with Standing Order 10.2 (Standing Delegation to Chairs) and other agreed delegations.

2. Recommendation

2.1 The Committee is recommended to note the outstanding and completed actions arising
from previous meetings of the Committee and its Working Groups, and correspondence
entered into by the Chair in accordance with the Standing Delegation to the Chair, as
listed in the report.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 85




19 December 2013

Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action
by

Deadline,
if
applicable

4.

Question and Answer Session with the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and
the MPS

During the discussion, the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime agreed to provide the
Committee with:

* Details of the headline results and proposed
actions following DARA’s audit review of the
recording of crime statistics;

* A copy of the ‘commissioning strategy” that
is assisting MOPAC and the MPS in its
commissioning process, including details of
which police services can be outsourced; and

* An update on the work being carried out by
the Violence against Women and Girls Panel
to identify young women and girls who might
be at risk of sexual exploitation.

The Commissioner and the Deputy
Commissioner also agreed to provide the
Committee with:

* Details of the resources dedicated to the
recording and classification of crime
statistics;

* Confirmation of the number and percentage
of on-the-spot fines to cyclists — issued
during the recent Met initiative ‘Operation
Safeway’- that have since been cancelled;
and

 Details of the number of students arrested
and the number of those who were
subsequently charged with offences during
the recent student protests. disorderly; and
(b) cases where neglect by parents/other
agencies/ homelessness has resulted in
children being held in police custody;

Awaiting
response.

Awaiting
response.

MOPAC

MPS

Page 86




Minute Subject and action required Status Action | Deadline,
item by if
applicable
* C(larification as to whether the Met’s
“vulnerability training” for officers will involve
them dealing with people with mental health
problems; and
* The Met’s latest data on Race and Religious
Hate Crimes.
5 December 2013
Minute Subject and action required Status Action | Deadline,
item by if
applicable
4. Safer Neighbourhood Boards
Durlng the discussion t.he Comm|ttee not.ed a Awaiting MOPAC
commitment from Marie Snelling to provide the
response.

Committee with copies of equality impact
assessments undertaken by MOPAC, once
available, in relation to the set-up of Safer
Neighbourhood Boards. A copy of the letter to
Marie Snelling has been attached as Appendix
1.

Page 87




21 November 2013

Minute Subject and action required Status Action | Deadline,
item by if
applicable
6. Mental Health and Policing
!_ord Adebowale (Chair, Indfapendent Cc?mm|55|on Awaiting ICMHP
into Mental Health and Policing) committed to response
provide the Committee with:
* Further information on the Met’s response to
the recommendations in the Independent
Commission on Mental Health and Policing
Report (ICHMR); and
* A copy of Stephen Greenhalgh’s response to
his letter concerning recommendation 2 of the
ICMHR, namely that “The MPS should include
a mental health-specific indicator as part of
performance measurement of the 20% Mayor’s
Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) target
for improving public confidence’.
Commander Jones (MPS) committed to provide Awaiting MPS
the Committee with: response.
* A copy of the MPS comprehensive action plan
on tackling mental health in relation to
policing;
* Alist of the individuals and organisations that
are on the Vulnerability Independent Advisory
Group and details of the programme of
meetings the MPS has with them; and
* Data on the number of patients transported in
mental health crisis by the MPS before and
after the national concordat around mental
health crisis services was introduced.
* An organisational chart detailing how the Met
manages the “five critical areas of risk’
Marie Snelling (Integrated Offender Management) | Response
committed to provide further details on what received dated | MOPAC

MOPAC’s role has been in response to following
up the recommendations in the ICMHR and its
response to the recommendations.

20 December
2013 (See
Appendix 2)

Page 88




Meeting of 7 November 2013

Minute Subject and action required Status Action | Deadline,
item by if
applicable
6. Question and Answer Session with the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the
MPS
The Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime Response MOPAC
committed to provide the Committee with: received dated
15 January 2014
» Confirmation of the consultation periods (3$)ee Appendix
for MOPAC's Crime Prevention, Hate '
Crime and Business Crime Strategies.
The Commissioner committed to provide the
. . MPS
Committee with:
e If available, a breakdown of the number of | Awaiting
response.

children taken into custody who are (a)
arrested as a result of one-off incidents,
such as being drunk and disorderly; and
(b) cases where neglect by parents/other
agencies/ homelessness has resulted in
children being held in police custody;

e C(larification as to whether the Met’s
‘vulnerability training” for officers will
involve them dealing with people with
mental health problems; and

e The Met’s latest data on Race and
Religious Hate Crimes.

Page 89




Meeting of 24 October 2013

Minute Subject and action required Status Action | Deadline,
item by if
applicable

6. Question and Answer Session with the

Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the

MPS

The Commissioner/Deputy Commissioner Awaiting MPS 25/11/2013

committed to provide the Committee with: response.

* Details of the Stop & Search-related
statistics collected from the Met’s body
camera pilots, including details of the
number of ‘unrecorded stops’; and

* A copy, when finalised, of the Met’s
response to the Royal College of Policing’s
draft code of practice on integrity and
ethics for policing in England and Wales.

Page 90




Complaints about the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Mayor for Policing
and Crime (DMPCQC)

Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

Deadline, if
applicable

5.

Complaints about the Mayor's
Office for Policing and Crime and
the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime (DMPCQ)

The Committee agreed, inter alia, to
delegate to the Monitoring Officer
(MO) all of the powers and functions
conferred on it by the Elected Local
Policing Bodies (Complaints and
Misconduct) Regulations, with the
exception of the functions set out at
Part 4 of the Regulations which may
not be delegated; and guidance on the
handling of complaints which requires
the Monitoring Officer to report, on a
regular basis, the summary details
(such as can be reported in public), on
the exercise of any and all of these
functions to the Committee for
monitoring purposes.

No disclosures to report
for the period 8 to 21
January 2014.

Monitoring
Officer

N/A

Transparency Procedure

The Committee agreed Members
disclose to the Executive Director of
Secretariat or his nominated
representative (within 28 days of the
contact) details of any significant
contact with the MPS and/or MOPAC
which they consider to be relevant to
the work of the Committee; and such
disclosures be reported to the next
meeting of the Committee.

No disclosures to report
for the period 8 to 21
January 2014.

Executive
Director of
Secretariat

N/A

Page 91




Taser Working Group

Taser Working Group Meeting of 16 May 2013

Minute | Subject and action required Status Action by Deadline, if
item applicable
6. Governance of Taser

Oliver Sprague committed to provide
the Working Group with a list of groups
of people who would be at a higher risk | In progress. Oliver
of death following the use of a Taser Sprague
weapon; and the list of fatalities that
Amnesty had collated [from around the
world] where coroners’ reports had
indicated that the use of a Taser
weapon may have played a role in the
cause of an individual’s death.

Additional correspondence

Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 14 January 2014, from the MPS regarding the firearms
judgment range exercise (See Appendix 4).

Letter from MOPAC to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 7 January 2014, regarding water cannon (See
Appendix 5).

Letter from Mayor to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 8 October 2013, regarding the Violence
Against Women & Girls Strategy (See Appendix 6).

Letter from the Met to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 5 November 2013, regarding Arming The
Met/Taser (See Appendix 7).

Letter from MOPAC to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 26 November 2013, regarding Arming The
Met/Taser (See Appendix 8).

List of appendices to this report:

Appendix 1 — Letter to MOPAC from the Chair of Police and Crime Committee dated 6 January 2014
Appendix 2 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 20 December 2013 from MOPAC
Appendix 3 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 15 January 2014 from MOPAC
Appendix 4 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 14 January 2014, from the MPS
Appendix 5 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 7 January 2014, from MOPAC
Appendix 6 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 8 October 2013 from the Mayor
Appendix 7 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 5 November 2013, from the MPS
Appendix 8 - Letter to the Police and Crime Committee, dated 26 November 2013, from MOPAC

Page 92



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

List of Background Papers:
All agenda papers and minutes for meetings of the Police and Crime Committee, Stop and Search Working

Group and the Taser Working Group.

Contact Officer: Camelia Thomas, Committee Officer or John Johnson, Committee Officer

Telephone: 020 7983 49795/4926
E-mail: camelia.thomas@l|ondon.gov.uk or john.johnson@london.gov.uk

Page 93




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Appendix 1
LONDON:!

Joanne McCartney AM, Chair of the Police and Crime Committee

London Assembly

City Hall
The Queen’s Walk
Marie Snelling London, SET 2AA
Director of Integrated Offender
Management and Neighbourhoods
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime
6 January 2014

Dear Marie,

Thank you for attending the Police and Crime Committee’s meeting on 5 December to discuss the
progress being made by boroughs in setting-up Safer Neighbourhood Boards (SNBs). It was an
interesting discussion, and we are pleased to hear that a number of boroughs are now at an
advanced stage in the development process. For those not so advanced, we would welcome further
information in due course.

The meeting was also a useful exercise in understanding how the core functions of the SNBs will be
carried out. | think you would agree that more work needs to be done on this. To assist in this, | have
identified below some of the areas where the Committee feels further guidance could usefully be
provided to the boroughs.

Additionally, | would welcome your response to the point raised at the meeting around the need for
Equality Impact Assessments to be carried out when evaluating final proposals for SNBs.

¢ Holding SNB meetings in public
MOPAC should make it a requirement that SNB meetings are held in public. The Mayor has
said that SNBs will bring greater accountability at a local level, and improve community
confidence. It is not clear how SNBs will be able to do this without holding its meetings in
public.

e Escalating issues and complaints
A formal process for how SNBs will be expected to escalate issues and complaints to MOPAC
and the Met should be set out in future guidance. MOPAC should also outline how it will
take forward any actions identified by SNBs.

e Representation on Boards
It is important that SNBs represent the community they serve. Final proposals from SNBs
should demonstrate how they have engaged with BAME, LGBT and faith groups to ensure
the widest representation. MOPAC should take consideration of the Public Sector Equality
Duty before final sign off.

Page 95



LONDON/ASSEMBLY

e Access to information
A protocol needs to be established between MOPAC and the Met for how crime data will be
provided to SNBs. The information made available should be easily accessible and
understood. It should also be presented in a consistent format across the boroughs, and
include sufficient historical data to identify trends.

e Monitoring community confidence/victims’ complaints
There needs to be more information in future guidance about how SNBs will be expected to
monitor community confidence and what outcomes are anticipated. The reference to hearing
victims” complaints should be reworded to reflect the text of Mayor’s letter.

e Community payback
While public oversight of Community Payback is welcome, MOPAC must establish a
commitment from SERCO at senior management level to engage with SNBs. This would
include attending meetings and making information publicly available on the local projects
being delivered.

¢ Funding
There is still a concern that the core funding for SNBs is not enough, particularly when issues
such as accessibility and training are factored in. MOPAC should reconsider the amount of
money it is making available to SNBs. We are also concerned around the support SNBs will
receive to bid for funding. Bidding is a skilled and resource-intensive process. MOPAC must
give consideration to how it will support SNBs to do this effectively, including whether more
training could be provided.

| hope you find the above useful in helping you to develop your thinking around SNBs. The
Committee intends to revisit the issue before April to assess the new guidance provided by MOPAC
to boroughs, and to assess how it is being used. It will also be interested to see how Boards are
progressing across London. Thank you again for your contributions at the meeting, and your
ongoing support to the Committee.

Yours sincerely

954

Joanne McCartney AM
Chair of the Police and Crime Committee

cc Steve O’Connell AM, Mayoral Advisor on Neighbourhoods

Page 96



APPENDIX 2

Joanne McCartney
Police and Crime Committee

20 December 2013 MOPAC21112013MS

Dear Joanne,
Mental Health and Policing

Thank you for inviting me to the PCC thematic meeting on 21* November 2013 that focused
on Mental Health and Policing. You requested that | provide details on The Mayar’s Office for
Police and Crime (MOPAC) response to the recommendations of the Independent Commission
on Mental Health and Policing.

As | set out during the Committee meeting, Stephen Greenhalgh, Deputy Mayor for Palicing
and Crime (DMPC) formally responded to the Independent Commission on Mental Health and
Policing in June 2013. In that letter, the DMPC thanked Lord Adebowale for his proposals to
aid change and provide solutions to a range of issues associated with mental health and
policing.

In response to the 2 key recommendations for the Mayor’s Office for Policing And Crime
(MOPAQ) the DMPC set out the following:

Recommendation 2: The MPS should include a mental health-specific indicator as
part of performance measurement of the 20% MOPAC target for improving public
confidence

“The identification and measurement of underlying and contributory factors for public
confidence is a complicated issue and identifying the right accountability mechanisms for this
issue is something on which we need to carefully reflect. | acknowledge the spirit within which
the recommendation has been made, however, in my view it would be overly prescriptive to set
a crude target. My intention is to continue our engagement with key partners including the
MPS and NHS England, London Region, to give this recommendation further consideration.

MOPAC will be playing a central role in ensuring that we get much better integration of

services. This will ensure appropriate buy-in and commitment from relevant partners whilst
guarding against setting a target that might produce a perverse outcome”.

Page 97



APPENDIX 2

Recommendation 3;: MOPAC should hold the MPS to account for identification and
delivery of a mental health specific performance indicator within the 20% MOPAC
target

“It is, of course, MOPAC's role to hold the MPS to account for delivery. However, | am equally
aware that in order for the MPS to meet this proposed target, we need the expertise and
involvement of other partners to ensure there is proper join up in service delivery to support
the MPS in its work, and this will be a fundamental part of future discussions”.

As agreed by all present during the Committee meeting, good progress has been made by the
MPS and partners since the Commission reported. MOPAC plays a key role in both challenging
and holding the MPS to account and is a key member of the Mental Health Partnership Board.

In addition, the DMPC has been very clear on the need to focus energies on integrating
services and MOPAC has taken a key leadership role in this regard. As an example, MOPAC is
working with NHS England London Region and the MPS to develop = street triage pilot to:

* Reduce the number of detentions made under s136 of the Mental Health Act
1983;

* Reduce the amount of time police officers spend dealing with incidents involving
people with mental iliness;

* Ensure that people suffering from mental illness are referred to appropriate services
that give them the support they need.

At a strategic level, the DMPC has held meetings with partners across the health and justice
system in relation to mental health. It was through discussions with NHS England, London
region he agreed to develop a joint strategy for health in the justice system. This is currently
being developed.

A lot has been achieved in the last 6 months and MOPAC is committed to continuing to play a

key role in ensuring that mental health is truly a shared responsibility and that further progress
s made by the MPS and partners in relation to key issues.

Yours sincerely, . St

x@znww/
Marie Sneiling

Director of Integrated Offender Management, Programmes and Neighbourhoods
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime

Page 98



APPENDIX 3

> . " MAYOR OF LONDON

Joanne McCartney AM

Chair of the Police and Crime Committee
London Assembly

City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

London SE1 2AA

15 January 2014 MOPAC23122013-131588

Dear Joanne
Crime Prevention Strategy

Thank you for your letter regarding the MPS/MOPAC Crime Prevention Strategy in which you
expressed interest in the ambitions around tackling repeat victimisation.

With regard to the measurement of repeat victimisation, | can confirm that the aim is to seek a
reduction in the number of victims subject to a repeat crime. As stated in the Strategy, the
focus will be on key crime types where repeat victimisation is a particular issue and will not be
restricted to MOPAC 7 crimes.

Burglary prevention is recognised in the Strategy as a key and immediate focus. A baseline
regarding repeat burglary victims is currently being determined. Baselines for other crime types
will be determined in due course.

In relation to accountability and performance reporting, the MPS has developed an action plan
setting out how it will deliver against the key commitments in the Strategy. | will use this to
hold the Commissioner to account and will track progress of the Strategy and key targets as
part of my ongoing monitoring of the Police and Crime Plan.

Yours sincerely
(3 Y

Stephen Greenhalgh
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime

Tal 020 7983 4184 - EMAIL stephen.greenhalgh@ondon.gov.uk - Fax 020 7883 4008

CITY HALL, THE QUEEN'S WAIHRO®®RE LONDON, LONDON SE1 2AA



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



METROPOLITAN
POLICE iy} FYRDIITH] S

Specialist Crime and Operations

Mark Rowley QPM
Assistant Commissioner

Room 1101

New Scotland Yard
Broadway

London SW1H 0BG

Tel: 020 7230 0480
Email: Mark.rowley@met.police.uk

APPENDIX 4 14th November 2014
London MPs

London Council Leaders

Police and Crime Committee

Community Advocates
Broadcasters / Journalists

Dear All,

I am writing to London MP’s, Police and Crime Committee, broadcasters/journalists,
council leaders and community advocates following the end of the Duggan inquest last
week. Regardless of the very clear “lawful killing” verdict it has generated debate about
police firearms tactics and firearms officers decision. As a consequence and to try to
better inform that debate about the tactics used to confront armed criminals as we protect
London, I write to invite you to take part in a “firearms judgment range” exercise. This is
a video simulation exercise that is used as part of Firearms Officer training and not only
tests their decision making but also illustrates the fast moving split second nature of the
incidents and the consequent challenges in accurate recall. Over the past two years a
small number of journalists and politicians have engaged in this and found it useful. The
Commissioner and myself are strongly of the view that if more opinion formers such as
yourself are able to engage with the judgment range exercise it can only positively inform

the debate.
To this end we have penciled in three sessions on the following Thursdays, which can
take up to a maximum of 15 people. If we are over subscribed we will arrange more

dates. These sessions will take place at New Scotland Yard.

16 January 5-7pm

Page 101



23 January 5-7pm
30 January 6-8pm

Please confirm attendance via e-mail with Jane.Johnson@met.police.uk or

Lee-Anne.Purvor@met.police.uk

In addition if local council leaders want such events to take place for key opinion formers
on their borough we would be happy to arrange similar sessions in the forthcoming

months.

I hope you find these suggestions helpful and are able to join us.

Yours sincerely,

ff ol Jg»ﬂ f}

Mark Rowley
Assistant Commissioner,
Specialist Crime and Operations

Page 102



APPENDIX 5

v > O MAYOR OF LONDON

Joanne McCartney

Chair, Police and Crime Committee
City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

More London

London SE1 2AA

07 January 2014

Dear Joanne,
Re: Water Cannon

Please find enclosed a letter sent today from the Mayor to the Home Secretary regarding the
use of water cannon in London.

As you are aware, we have discussed the possibility of making water cannon available to the
MPS on a number of occasions, including at your Committee and at a MOPAC challenge
session in December 2012, so none of the issues are new. At these sessions, we were clear that
some public engagement would be necessary before making a final decision. This approach was
also supported in your recent ‘Arming the Met’ report.

In order to ensure that water cannon is available by next summer, something which the
Commissioner has been calling for, it is important that this process of engagement starts soon.
This wil! be based on the reassurance that the Commissioner has given that it will be ‘rarely
used and rarey seen’. So, | will be leading a short series of events to seek the views of
Londoners beginning in the New Year. This will consist of a public meeting, discussions with
stakeholders, and discussions with focal representatives including MPs and iocal councils.

Previous research carried out by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary has shown support
for the use of water cannon in the most extreme circumstances and so we will be taking into
account this work - and the prior work outlined above — when engaging.

| am due to appear before your Committee on 20 January and would be happy to discuss the
issues relating to the use of water cannon at that meeting, this would then allow me and the
Mayor to consider your views in advance of a formal decision being made in mid-February.

Yours sincerely

tgphen Greenhalgh
eputy Mayor for Policing and Crime

cc. London Assembly

Tel 020 7983 4184 - EMAIL stephen.greenhailghi@london.gov.uk - Fax 020 7983 4008

CITY HALL, THE QUEEN'S <<>_.Xﬁ_u@@ﬂ_m_.@mzn02. LONDON S5E1 2AA



APPENDIX 5

Page 104



APPENDIX 5

MAYOR OF LONDON

Rt Hon Theresa May MP

Home Secretary Date:

Home Office 06 )AN 2014
2 Marsham Street

London SW1P 4DF

Dear Theresa
Re: Water Cannon

Foliowing the disorder in August 2011, both the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) and Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary stated that there are some circumstances where water cannon may be of
use in future, alongside a number of other public order tactics.

Following briefing by the Commissioner t am broadly convinced of the value of having water cannon
available to the MPS for those circumstances where its absence would lead to either greater disorder
or the use of more extreme force. Polling conducted after the riots shows that the majority of people
are supportive of this. My support in principle for the police to have water cannon at their disposal in
London is, of course, subject to the correct procedures for both deployment and use, and | would like
to discuss these with Londoners.

In order to confirm the support in London for the use of water cannon in the most extreme
circumstances, | will be undertaking a short period of engagement in the New Year. This follows a
number of discussions that have taken place in the London Assembly and elsewhere over the past
year.

I plan to engage the public, key stakeholders and efected representatives, including the Police and
Crime Committee of the London Assembly and this will be led by my Office for Policing And Crime and
Deputy Mayor, Stephen Greenhalgh.

The Commissioner has made it clear that he anticipates that water cannon in London would be rarely
seen and rarely used. | am confident that, with the help of Londoners, the MPS will be able to develop
a proportionate and responsible plan for potential future deployment, with sufficient democratic
oversight.

Should the engagement plan reveal serious, as yet unidentified, concerns I will, of course, take these
into consideration and share them with you before you make any decision to licence this non-lethal
tool.

City Hall, London, SE1 2AA » mayor@london.gov.uk ¢ london.gov.uk ¢ 020 78983 4000

Page 105



APPENDIX 5

MAYOR OF LONDON

Finally, | am aware that you have declined to make funds avallable for purchasing the interim water
cannon solution as a national asset. Subject to the public engagement process that | have outlined
above, | am happy to make the necessary funds available to the MPS for the most economical interim
solution that allows the Commissioner to meet his desire to prevent disorder on the streets. | would

expect to do this in February, following the engagement.

Were you to licence water cannon’s use, | would be keen for my ethics panel, which will be established
in the New Year, to undertake a study on the best engagement and use strategy in the event of
deployment so that the best ethica! framework is in place.

Yours ever,

Boris Johnson
Mayor of London

City Hall, London, SE1 2AA mayor@london.gov.uk ¢ iondon.gov.uk ¢ 020 7983 4000

Page 106



W BULUYEY

Appendix 6
MAYOR OF LONDON 09 0CT 2013
Joanne McCartney AM Our ref: MGLAQ70813-3151
City Hall
The Queen’s Walk
More London Date: 08 OCT 2013

London SET 2AA

Dear Joanne

Thank you very much for sending me the Police and Crime Committee’s response for my violence
against women and girls (VAWG) consultation. Further to my letter of 27 August, my full response is
below.

Tackling VAWG remains one of my top priorities for London and, as you say, my aspiration is nothing
less than the eradication of all forms of violence against women and girls.

| am pleased to inform you that we have received a very positive response to the consultation from
the public and key partners and that the Mayor's Office for Policing And Crime (MOPAC) also
commissioned a consultation with survivors of VAWG to ensure that their voices inform the
development of my second strategy.

Analysis of consultation responses is still underway and the recommendations of the Committee have
been noted and will be considered by MOPAC as they develop the final Strategy which will be
published before the end of this year. As requested, please see below my response to each of your
recommendations.

¢ Recommendation 1
To inform the Strategy, MOPAC are mapping existing domestic violence service provision to
ensure a clear understanding of the current landscape, levels of demand and unmet need to
inform future commissioning and service developments. | am very keen for MOPAC to
develop a partnership approach to the funding of VAWG services, as this is key to ensuring
the future sustainability of specialist services in London. This will be reflected in the
forthcoming Strategy.

* Recommendation 2
| am determined to ensure that there is a more consistent level of Independent Domestic
Violence Advocate (IDVA) provision acrass London and this will be addressed through the
forthcoming Strategy. IDVA provision is for the most part commissioned locally through a
combination of government grant funding and local authority funding. As part of my second
VAWG Strategy, MOPAC are seeking to understand the levels of demand for these services
and other forms of domestic violence service provision. We will also be guided by what
survivors of VAWG tell us about the types of services they value most and what the current
gaps in provision are.

City Hall, London, SE1 2AA ¢ mayor@london.gov.uk ¢ london.gov.uk ¢ 020 7983 4000
Page 107



Appendix 6
MAYOR OF LONDON

* Recommendation 3
| have been informed that the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) is already rolling out
training on rape and sexual violence to frontline officers which has been designed by the new
Sexual Offences, Exploitation and Child Abuse Command (5C02/5). This training aims to
improve victim care through improved referral pathways and a better understanding of the
impact of rape on victims. The training will be rolled out to the remaining 16 boroughs next
year.

* Recommendation 4
| am determined to ensure that gang-associated young women and girls are identified and
offered appropriate support and routes out. MOPAC is currently developing a girls and gangs
strategic framework document to guide staff in local authorities in tackling these issues
locally

¢ Recommendation 5

a) To clarify, | am not suggesting that support for women involved in prostitution should be
dependent on a willingness to exit as suggested in your paper. | want to ensure that women
involved in prostitution in Landon are given appropriate support and have the confidence to
report crimes against them. However, | also want them provided with greater opportunities to
exit through the provision of specialist services that address their multiple, complex needs.
Evidently this also involves harm-minimisation work to enhance women’s safety and to
facilitate the reporting of crimes. | am pleased to say that the consultation has highlighted
that there is support for my approach in London both from stakeholders and survivors of
VAWG.

b) As part of my second VAWG Strategy, the MPS will be developing a common understanding
and protocol for responding to prostitution in London.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank you and all members of the Police and Crime Committee
for taking the time to submit a response to my VAWG consultation.

Yours ever,

Boris Johnson
Mayor of LLondon

City Hall, London, SE1 2AA ¢ mayor@london.gov.uk ¢ london.gov.uk ¢« 020 7983 4000
Page 108



Gz w
Appendix 7 a ﬁ :

METROPROLITAN
g NOV 2013
il TOTAL POLICING 0

Specialist Crime and Operations

--
- o -

.ll-l-'-‘-l“
s

SCO12 - Armed Policing

1113 Tower Block

New Scotland Yard

10 Broadway
Joanne McCartney wam._am_:omm
Chair of the Police and Crime Committee .
LONDONASSEMBLY L
Greater London Authority Email: Neil. Basu@met.police.uk
City Hall www.met.police.uk
The Queen's Walk Your ref:
London, SE1 2AA Our ref:

5th November 2013

Dear Ms McCartney

Re: Arming the Met: The deployment of less-lethal weapons in London
We welcome the close scrutiny provided by the committee on this sensitive issue.

The MPS carefully considered issues of public and officer safety in its decision to make
TASER's available to more officers. Our priority at all times is the safety and protection of
the public. TASER is proven to be a valuable tool in reducing the risk of harm to the police,
violent offenders and other members of the public.

In response to the recommendations, we do accept that the process for introducing or
expanding the availability of less lethal weapons should include a sound business case
supported by accurate data. We will ensure that any future decisions regarding TASER
development and expansion is captured through the decision making process entailed as
part of the bi-annual Armed Policing Strategic Threat and Risk Assessment, in line with the
requirements of the 2003 Codes of Practice on Police use of Firearms and Less Lethal
Weapons. This requires an ACPO led review of the MPS's operational capability and
capacity requirement for both firearms and less lethal weaponry according to actual,
perceived and postulated threats.

A parallel programme of public engagement delivered at Borough level, supported and
coordinated from the centre will enable a more robust method of communication and will
allow for MOPAC to be openly sighted on changes related to TASER. We are engaged on a
web site building programme and improvements to our data gathering to make the
information publicly available on a routine basis and we propose to include our MPS and
borough specific community impact assessments.

An MPS oversight group, known as the TASER Reference Group (TRG), has been
established and has now met twice. There is community representation as well as figures
from academia, mental health, the law, and Amnesty International. MOPAC also attends this
group. We are seeking the oversight group’s authority to make the minutes of these

meetings publicly available, and we will fragided @9 PCC with details of its EmSUm_.m:ﬁ_._



oo:m:E:o_._m:a8..3mo3m36=8 é:z%%mmm:m.__%.wﬂmm. é_.__o:mqmnc:ma_u\cmm:m_.m_.d,._mac<

the membership.

The oversight group will also be invited to examine the TASER ‘post incident reporting
procedures’ and will be provided with a copy of the latest TASER Standard Operating
Procedure which describes the process in full. They will also be entitled to scrutinise high
profile incidents and question the MPS lead officers on the response, although there will be
occasions where they are subject to an independent investigation by the Independent Police
Complaints Commission whose permission will need to be sought.

The process for identifying the design, delivery and management of training relevant to
TASER is now the responsibility of the Chief Firearms Instructor (CFl), as served by the
conditions laid out in the College of Policing’s firearms training licence. The current method
of TASER training for STU's is one which meets all required learning outcomes and follows
national best practice. The TASER reference group will be further invited to provide objective
assessment of TASER training to quality assure the content, design and delivery of the
training.

The issue of adopting officer worn cameras to record incidents is being examined on a
national working group which is being led by the MPS head of Specialist Firearms on behalf
of the ACPO AP lead DCC Simon Chesterman and includes its wider applicability to
authorised firearms officers as well as Specially Trained TASER Units and we will report the
progress of this work to the oversight group.

Our intention is to be honest, open and transparent in our use of TASER in recognition of the
sensitivities in the use of TASER highlighted within this report.

| lock forward to meeting with you in the near future.

Yours sincerely,

Neil Basu
Commander
Armed Policing

Page 110 2



Appendix 8

KM MAYOR OF LONDON

Joanne McCartney AM
London Assembly

City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

More London

LONDON SET 3AA

26 November 2013 MOPAC301013-131351

Dear Joanne
PCC Report “Arming the Met: The Deployment of less-lethal weapons in London”

| write in response to your letter enclosing the PCC’s report entitled Arming the Met: The
Deployment of less-lethal weapons in London.

i welcome the committee’s findings that the training of officers is among the best in the world. All
the evidence shows that tasers prevent injury in violent incidents. | will continue to provide robust
oversight over their use in the capital.

In respect of the two recommendations that have specific relevance to MOPAC:

Recommendation 1: decision making

Since | became DMPC in June 2012, decision making processes have been tightened
considerably. Whilst there are no immediate plans for further roll out, | am confident that
appropriate governance structures are now in place.

Recommendation 2: publication of data
My officers are currently in discussion with their MPS counterparts, to agree how best to make
this data available. | hope this will be achieved by the end of the year.

Yours sincerely

8]

"4

tephen Greenhalgh
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime

Ragerlll



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Minutes-Appendix 1- Transcript

	4 Question and Answer Session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and the MPS
	APPENDIX Q&A session with DMPC and MPS

	5 Safeguarding
	Safeguarding scoping_PCC 300114 final

	6 Work Programme for the Police and Crime Committee
	7 Summary List of Actions
	Summary list Appendix 1 - letter to Marie Snelling - follow-up to SNB meeting
	Summary list Appendix 2 - letter from MOPAC re Mental Health and Policing
	Summary list Appendix 3 - letter from MOPAC re Crime Prevention Strategy
	Summary List Appendix 4 firearms judgement range exercise
	Summary list Appendix 5 - letter from MOPAC re Water Cannon
	Summary list Appendix 6 - letter from Mayor re VAWG
	Summary list Appendix 7 - letter from Met re Taser
	Summary list Appendix 8 - letter from MOPAC re Taser


